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Financial Highlights
MBRE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

To all Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Wuyi
International Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Wuyi Pharmaceutical” or
the “Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 was the start of “13th five years plan” and a year full of ups and
downs. Since the implementation of policies such as “Healthy China 2030”
and “Planning of Pharmaceutical Development” and various measures
including “Urban-Rural Medical Insurance Integration”, “Medical Insurance
Reimbursement Standard”, “Quality Consistency Evaluation” and “Two-
invoice System”, the pharmaceutical market has undergone tremendous
changes with keen competition. The industry was generally under pressure
due to a continuous decrease in the price of pharmaceutical products and a
surge in cost of raw materials. During the year, the Group’s two production
lines in the plant located in Haixi Industrial and Trading Development Zone
(the “Haixi plant”) were suspended due to the carrying out of upgrades and
enhancement on the production lines in obtaining new Good Manufacturing
Practice (“GMP”) Certification (the “Suspension”) and all production
compartments in the Haixi plant have been temporarily suspended as a
result of an accidental rupture in the main underground steam pipelines,
which caused interruption in production. However, the Group actively
responded and overcame the challenges so as to continuously enhance the
production efficiency, enrich the product portfolio and identify developing
opportunities in the future.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s turnover was
RMB263,025,000 (2015: RMB555,652,000), and the loss attributable
to owners of the Company was RMB396,258,000 (2015: profit of
RMB41,203,000). The Board do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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Marketing: In addition to stocking up inventories, controlling cost and
striving for orders after resuming production, the Group also launched
21 types of Western prescription injectables with different specifications
during the year in order to turnaround the adverse situation caused by the
Suspension and the supply shortage of products such as Perilla Oil Capsule.
There was a huge demand in injectable market. As different doses and
packaging are suitable for different specific conditions and customers may
purchase other pharmaceutical products of the Group while purchasing
such injectables, advertising promotion benefits had been achieved to a
certain extent. The Group continued to plough and cultivate the target
markets deeply and intensely and optimise its marketing resources by
integrating new medicine promotion seminars, academic seminars as well
as medicine fairs.

Manufacturing: As Haixi plant has been suspended due to the carrying out
of upgrading process and all production compartments were temporarily
suspended resulting from an accidental rupture of the main underground
steam pipelines connecting all the production compartments, causing
serious damages to water pipes, nitrogen pipes, fire pipes and sewage
pipes, the production volume had a significant decease throughout the year.
Currently, the repair on damaged pipelines has mostly completed and the
upgrading process is nearly finished.

Management: The acquisition of Fujian Liumai Medical Services Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Liumai”) by the Group has been completed at the end of 2016.
Fujian Liumai is currently an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
with sales of software and provision of consultancy services as its core
business. Fujian Liumai achieved a satisfactory result during the year. Based
on the audited financial statements of Fujian Liumai, its actual profits in 2016
exceeded the profit guarantee and it contributed revenue of approximately
RMB283,000 to the Group after completion, which enabled the Group
to lay a solid foundation to expand its profit sources, improve the overall
management level of the Group, further explore the digital medical and
healthcare service market.

Research and Development (R&D): The Group controlled R&D expenditure
for new drugs cautiously, focused resources on promoting the research
of new medical treatment results of Perilla Oil Capsule and conducted the
research on the anti-hepatitis compound drug liver & gall bladder tablets in
cooperation with the Department of Medicine of Peking University. Another
new product, Pazufloxacin Mesilate Injectible, was still undergoing approval
procedures during the period.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Despite of the slowdown in the national macroeconomics growth, keen
competition in pharmaceutical market, stricter expense control of medical
insurance and the norm of lowered bidding prices, the rigid demand for
pharmaceutical products is still increasing against the backdrop of rapidly
aging population, implementation of the urbanization policy and increasing
national income. The Group will adhere to its new innovative development
strategy, strengthen its internal management, enhance its advantages in
core pharmaceutical business and steadily proceed with various works in
order to further increase its sustainable development capacity.

The Group also actively pushes forward the quality consistency evaluation
on imitating drugs by selecting certain existing drugs with greater potential
to apply for receiving such evaluation and strives to expand its market
shares after being evaluated. The relevant works are being processed in an
orderly manner.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

The Group has formed an associate company with Antu County Huifeng
Agricultural Trade Company Limited (“Huifeng”) to invest in the sales and
plantation of Perillas and Perilla seeds and its processed products. Perilla
Qil Capsule has been the key product of the Group and Perillas is the
raw material for its production. Following the formation of the associate
company, the Group will be able to utilise the technical expertise of Huifeng
in respect of plantation and management of Chinese herbal medicine and
invest in Perillas plantation base for a stable supply of Perillas and a better
control on the quality of Perillas so as to reduce purchase cost and meet
the future market demand for Perilla Oil Capsule. As at 31 December 2016,
the associate company was still in the preparatory stage in sourcing suitable
plantation base.

Following the completion of upgrading process in the Haixi plant, it is
expected that production will be fully resumed with a higher production
capacity. The Group will further leverage on the advantage of economies of
scale and reduce cost to enhance efficiency.

In addition, Mr. Lin Min resigned as executive Director of the Group due to
his personal commitments. The Group has appointed Mr. Chen Cheng Qing
and Ms. Hung Hoi Lan as executive Directors with effect from 17 February
2017. Both of them have substantial management experience and they will
work with the Group to strengthen its core pharmaceutical business and
key products while expanding new business, increasing its profitability and
grasping new market opportunities at the same time.

I would like to express my heart-felt gratitude on behalf of the Board to Wuyi
Pharmaceutical’s management team and all the staff for their continuous
effort and contribution. In the meantime, | have to thank shareholders for
their ongoing support to the Group. In the past, we have overcome many
challenges hand in hand; in the future, we will continually unite to further
create handsome returns for the business partners and shareholders of the
Group.

Lin Ou Wen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 April 2017
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@ Management Discussion and Analysis
- EEENWEIN

BUSINESS REVIEW E eI

Looking back in 2016, the “Healthy China 2030” plan, published by the BE-_FT - F EBRODETEEFEH
State Council, was the first medium to long term strategic plan at state 2030 HEIME) - REZBEREAHBER
level in respect of health in China since its founding. It was expected to B EFEEE P REBIEIRE - Bi5HESD
boost demand for medical products and provide pharmaceutical enterprises BAENR - BECEAES RIS o EBE—
with an opportunity to transform. However, pharmaceutical enterprises in F o SR %1}}@“‘“}1 SEFME - ﬁ%
China were still facing intense market competition and a difficult situation in EERNR#EHE  TEEBRERBRTER
industry restructuring in the previous year. Compared to 2015, the industry — RN @%‘% RHE /\I&ﬁﬁ’E
situation as a whole has no observable improvement with a continuous BAEE FF o (TEFEDE - o el
increase in cost of packaging, raw materials, labour and sales, which AV BE AR o

resulted in pressure on industrial profits and the elimination of some less

10

efficient pharmaceutical enterprises.

In 2016, the sales of the Group were negatively affected by various factors.
Two production lines in the Haixi plant were suspended due to the carrying
out of upgrades and enhancement on production lines in obtaining new
GMP Certification. Although the Group increased its production volume
prior to the suspension and kept inventories of the related products in
advance, certain key products, including the Perilla Oil Capsule, were still
in short supply. The Group expects to obtain the new GMP Certification
and resume the operation of the two suspended production lines by end
of May 2017. On the other hand, sales deteriorated in 2016 as the Haixi
plant has been temporarily suspended as a result of a rupture in the main
underground steam pipelines connecting all the production compartments
in November 2016. An investigation found that the pipeline rupture was
mainly caused by peeling damage to the surface of the steam pipelines
and by unstable pressure. As at the date of this Annual Report, most of the
production facilities have resumed operations, we will hasten to resume the

full production in the Haixi plant to fill the current sales gap.

Costs of purchase decreased following the reduced turnover. Among the
costs of sales, the fixed costs (in particular, labour costs depreciation
charges) did not decrease as the turnover did, which caused an increase in
the proportion of the fixed costs to the overall costs of sales, affecting the

overall gross profit margin.

In face of a multitude of challenges, the Group expanded its market under
the strategy of lower profit margin but higher turnover and launched various
new products to boost income of pharmaceutical products in 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of the Group recorded
a year-on-year decrease of 52.7% to approximately RMB263.0 million.
The overall gross profit was approximately RMB18.0 million and the gross
profit margin recorded a year-on-year decrease of 14.7 percentage points
to 6.8%. The loss attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to

RMB396.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DEVELOPMENT OF MAJOR PRODUCTS

Perilla Oil Capsule

Perilla Oil Capsule is one of the key products of the Group. It is effective
in lowering cholesterol, reducing low-density lipoprotein and increasing
high-density lipoprotein. It is specifically effective in hyperlipidemia and its
side effects are mild. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover
amounted to approximately RMB21.2 million, accounting for approximately
8.1% of the Group’s turnover (2015: approximately RMB39.7 million,
accounting for 7.1% of the Group’s total turnover). The decrease in sales
was mainly attributable to the suspension in Haixi plant, the inability to
meet market demand due to inventory shortage as well as the year-on-year
decrease by 17.5% in the price of Perilla Oil Capsule.

N(2)-L Alanyl-L Glutamine Injectable

During the year, there was keen competition within the N(2)-L Alanyl-L
Glutamine Injectable market. However, as its production was not affected
by the suspension and the Group strengthened its marketing effort and
implemented effective and targeted marketing strategies, the turnover
increased by 18.0% to RMB44.1 million, accounting for approximately
16.8% of the total revenue of the Group (2015: approximately RMB37.4
million, accounting for approximately 6.7% of the total revenue of the
Group). Therefore, N(2)-L Alanyl-L Glutamine Injectable became the best
seller of the Group.

Compound Chinese Angelica Injectable

Compound Chinese Angelica Injectable had decreased in sales in 2016 with
an upward adjustment of the price by over 4.5%. Its turnover amounted to
approximately RMB12.1 million, accounting for approximately 4.6% of the
Group’s total revenue (2015: approximately RMB18.8 million, accounting
for approximately 3.4% of total revenue).

Other products

In 2015, the Group introduced four new products, which are Western
prescription medicines, including (plastic bottle) sodium chloride injectable,
(plastic bottle) 5% glucose injectable and two (plastic bottle) 10% glucose
injectables of different volumes. In 2016, the price of (plastic bottle) sodium
chloride injectable dropped by 3% while its turnover increased by RMB1.1
million or 26.7% and its gross profit margin increased by 2.7 percentage
point as compared to the same period last year. The price of glucose
injectable is similar to previous year while its turnover increased by RMB5.1
million or 114% and its gross profit margin decreased by 18.7 percentage
point as compared to the same period last year due to the increase of
depreciation expenses in cost of sales.

In 2016, the Group launched 21 Western prescription injectables with
different specifications, including sodium chloride injectable, glucose
injectables and glucose sodium chloride injectables packed in plastic
bottles, soft bags and glass bottles, accounting for 1.9% of the Group’s
total revenue.
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Research and development (R&D) of new medicines

Since the research and development of new medicines requires a vastness
of resources, the Group, according to the market conditions and industry
environment, controlled R&D expenditure for new drugs cautiously,
focused resources on promoting the research of new medical treatment
results of Perilla Oil Capsule and conducted the research on the anti-
hepatitis compound drug liver & gall bladder tablets in cooperation with
the Department of Medicine of Peking University. The Group would also
focus its resources on operation of existing products to strive for quality
consistency evaluation of products with greater potential.

SALES NETWORK AND MARKETING

The Group’s sales network covers 27 key provinces, municipalities and
autonomous regions across China, mainly covering the more affluent
coastal cities and provinces in the eastern region and the north-eastern
region of China. During the period under review, the number of medicine
distributors substantially increased by 78 to 136.

The Group recognized that there was an immense demand for affordable
ordinary medicines with good quality in the rural markets in China and
promoted various types of its affordable ordinary medicines in rural areas by
adjusting resources and engaging county-level pharmaceutical companies.
During the period under review, turnover in rural areas amounted to
approximately 13.4% of the Group’s total turnover, which was approximate
to that of the same period in 2015. The Group will continue to explore
opportunities in rural markets to increase its sales of ordinary medicines.

In 2016, the Group further consolidated its marketing resources on
organizing academic seminars, new medicine promotion seminars, as well
as medicine trade fairs to introduce the advantages of various medicines
through professional channels.

COMPLETION OF ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
FORMATION OF AN ASSOCIATE COMPANY

During the year, the Group completed the acquisition of Fujian Liumai, an
enterprise with sales of softwares and provision of consultancy services as
its core business. As the acquisition was completed on 16 December 2016,
the revenue contribution to the Group’s turnover during the year was only
RMB283,000.

In accordance with the terms of the relevant share transfer agreement dated
9 December 2015, the vendors have jointly and severally undertaken and
guaranteed that the total audited net profit after taxation of Fujian Liumai
arising from its ordinary course of business (excluding non-operating
income and extraordinary income) for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 shall not be less than RMB8.0 million. Based on the audited financial
statements of Fujian Liumai, such guarantee had been fulfilled for the year
ended 31 December 2016. As such, no adjustment to the consideration for
the acquisition of equity interests in Fujian Liumai is required.

Furthermore, the Group on 4 November 2016 entered into a cooperation
agreement with Huifeng in respect of, among others, the formation of
an associate company, the provision of financial assistance and the
cooperation regarding the planting, processing, production and sales of
Perillas and Perilla seeds. As at 31 December 2016, the associate company
was still in the preparatory stage in sourcing suitable plantation base, and
had not yet contributed revenue to the Group.
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OUTLOOK

The central government has issued a medium to long term national
strategic plan in respect of health and implemented policies such as “Two-
invoice System” and “Quality Consistency Evaluation” in order to create a
healthy and good operating environment in the long term. Looking forward,
reform of the pharmaceutical industry will continue to deepen at a fast
pace. Although strengthening the regulatory requirements and rising the
entry barriers may result in industry restructuring, the management of
the Company believes that opportunities come with challenges. A more
standardized market will ultimately be beneficial to the healthy development
of the industry and the market in the long term.

Seeking changes while maintaining stability and grasping the market’s
needs

The Group recognized that there was an immense demand for affordable
ordinary medicines with good quality in the rural markets. In order to grasp
the market’s needs, the Company will continue its strategy of lower profit
margin but higher turnover to expand its base of sales in a short period of
time.

At the same time, the management realizes that customers have different
demands for Western prescription injectable products in different
specifications of package. In order to meet the needs of the market and
to further boost sales, the Group launched various products of different
specifications last year, including new packages of 250 ml and 150 ml.
These products were put into production and launched. The initial response
to these products was satisfactory, which further enhances the potential
sales of products and can have a marketing effect on other pharmaceutical
products and push up their revenue, while driving the overall revenue base
at the same time.

Expanding the industrial value chain to ensure a stable supply of raw
materials with good quality

In 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company participated in a joint
investment in Perilla and Perilla seed planting, processing, production and
sales business in Antu County, Jilin Province, China. As at 31 December
2016, the associate company was still in the preparatory stage in sourcing
suitable plantation base. It is expected to provide the Group with high
quality Perilla seeds at the lowest price in the market, which helps to control
the production cost of Perilla Oil Capsule, our key product, and to stabilize
the inventory level and supply of our products in order to cater for the
immense market demand and potential in the future. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2017, the upcoming sources
of funding is expected to be funded by internal resources of the Group.

In the face of intense industrial competition, the Group is confident to keep
abreast of market dynamics with a diversified product portfolio, experienced
sales teams, competitive product prices and sales performance. On one
hand, we will put our resources in strengthening sales and marketing
activities of existing products, on the other hand, we will hasten to resume
the production in the Haixi plant to fill the current sales gap.
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The management firmly believes that the pharmaceutical industry is
experiencing a golden period of long-term growth against the backdrop
of an increase in per capita disposable income, population aging and
urbanization. The Group will grasp the developing opportunity with timely
moves and actively adjust its product portfolio. At the same time, the Group
will optimize its sales network to increase its market shares in rural areas
and lay the solid foundation for long-term growth of profit so as to generate
optimal returns for the Group’s partners and shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. Turnover
To keep consolidating the development of existing medicine business
and markets, the Group reinforced the sales strategies of “small
profit, quick return” and focused on rural markets. The Group
recorded an overall turnover of approximately RMB263.0 million
(2015: approximately RMB555.7 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 52.7%. Turnover of the second half of the year was
approximately RMB91.5 million (turnover of the first half of the year
was approximately RMB171.5 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 46.7% as compared with that of the first half of the
year due to the temporary suspension of the Haixi plant as a result of
a rupture in the main underground steam pipelines connecting all the
production compartments in November 2016.

Turnover of 2016 was still dominated by Western medicines, we
recorded a turnover of approximately RMB177.3 million in Western
medicines, accounting for approximately 67.4% of the overall
turnover and representing a decrease of approximately 40.0% over
last year (2015: approximately RMB295.4 million, representing
approximately 53.2% of the overall turnover). The turnover of Chinese
medicines amounted to approximately RMB81.7 million, accounting
for approximately 31.1% of the overall turnover and representing a
decrease of approximately 67.1% over last year (2015: approximately
RMB248.0 million, accounting for approximately 44.6% of the overall
turnover). The difference in proportion of the turnover of Western
medicines and Chinese medicines increased. In addition, the
pharmaceutical trading revenue recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB3.7 million, accounting for approximately 1.4% of the overall
turnover and representing a decrease of approximately 70.0% over
last year (2015: approximately RMB12.3 million, accounting for
approximately 2.2% of the overall turnover), representing a decrease
as compared with the proportion of last year.

Although our key product, Perilla Oil Capsule, has obtained
approval from Fujian, Shanxi, Inner Mongolia and Xinjiang for listing
in the provincial medical insurance directories and it is still under
a monitoring period, it is yet to be listed in the national medical
insurance directory, together with the suspension of production in the
Haixi plant, causing inability to meet market demand due to inventory
shortage and the lowering of the unit price of Perilla Oil Capsule
by 17.5% over last year, its production and sales were affected
to a certain extent. Sales for the year amounted to approximately
RMB21.2 million, accounting for approximately 8.1% of the overall
turnover, or a decrease of approximately 46.6% over last year (2015:
approximately RMB39.7 million, accounting for approximately 7.1%
of the overall turnover).

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

EHERE  EAAUIRKARA - AQDE
BRICRBSREN B E ST BETETIER
REIEESENESH - AEBGILRRREK
B EREY BRARERMAS R A
EEBHEHEERBIERENTSME - AR
FERRIERETIBRER  AREENSEE
MR BIE SR ERR -

i e
ABREESEREEREBMT ST
B AEENERNZETERNT
BHEERES o AEEBIEEEEES
#) N R % 263,000,000 7T ( ZE—F4F :
# AN R #555,700,0007T ) © B EFE R
FE#)52.7% o T FHFWMEEBHOBA
R# 91,500,000t ( ¥ FHAEARE
171,500,00070) * 8 E¥ F R & 58
TPEHI46.7% + TIHPNEBARERAES
AEEEM TARETEEN T — X F
T ARAEN  BHELEEEHYERF
KE

CE-RFEAEBNARAEERTS
) REBAEMSERSBSEEBEY
AR#177,300,0007C © (HE R4 ¥4
4967.4%  EEHEREF KL 40.0%
(ZZ—ARF : 49 A R# 295,400,000
JC (REEBR L ERHH53.2%) o K Bk
Efm 2 SN AR 81,700,000 7T
(EREEEENA% LEBERE
FERBEH6TA%(ZE—FF: HAR
#248,000,0007T ' HEREEEBEYH
44.6%) o 75 %5 EE Gh B R BY R L 4 2
BZHAELHISREFEM B 58
BEGEBRARGEERNARE
3,700,000 7T * (HEEEEE L 1.4% -
BEEREFTIRN700%(ZE—H
£ M AR 12,300,000 7T  {HEEEE
EEN2.2%) BOLBEF -

AEEETEMERBG T HRBEHA
EDRERE LA AEGH LKFE
BHOEE AL BRE S RDER AR
EEAA - AT A RERLES AR
REREY NMEEBAREEE  EfF
KRR TSR KA T hE B %
BERETNHI75%  SHEENMEER
MNZE—FEFE  FREEHDARKE
21,200,0007T * (&R L EHISA% -
BEFETHN466%(ZZE—HE: 4
AR# 39,700,000 7T © (HEEELEELY
71%) °




Management Discussion and Analysis

The highest sales volume was again achieved by Western medicine,
N(2)-L Alanyl-L Glutamine Injectable, with a turnover of approximately
RMB44.1 million, representing approximately 16.8% of the overall
turnover (2015: approximately RMB37.4 million, representing
approximately 6.7% of the overall turnover). Due to the reduction
of productivity of certain products as a result of the suspension of
production in the Haixi plant, the Group focused on N(2)-L Alanyl-L
Glutamine Injectable and strengthened its promotion during the year.
Therefore, the turnover of this product increased by approximately
18.0% as compared with the same period of last year. Sales of the
five top selling medicines amounted to approximately RMB128.1
million, representing approximately 48.7% of the overall turnover
(2015: approximately RMB164.5 million, representing approximately
29.6% of the overall turnover). The Group introduced 21 Western
prescription medicines of different specifications, including sodium
chloride injectable, glucose injectable and glucose sodium chloride in
plastic bottles, soft bags and glass bottles, their turnover for the year
was approximately RMB5.0 million, representing approximately 1.9%
of the overall turnover.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 85.0% over
last year to approximately RMB18.0 million (2015: approximately
RMB119.6 million). Gross profit margin decreased to approximately
6.8% (2015: approximately 21.5%):

(1) Turnover: Turnover was affected by various negative factors.
Two production lines in the Haixi plant were suspended due to
the carrying out of upgrades and enhancement on production
lines in obtaining new GMP Certification. Although the Group
increased its production volume prior to the suspension and
kept inventories of the related products in advance, certain key
products, including the Perilla Oil Capsule were still in short
supply. On the other hand, sales was further deteriorated in
2016 as the Haixi plant has been temporarily suspended as
a result of a rupture in the main underground steam pipelines
connecting all the production compartments in November
2016;

(2)  Cost of sales: The new plant could officially produce medicines
of relevant specifications starting from the beginning of 2015.
The new plant and relevant production facilities newly acquired
slightly increased the depreciation expenses in the cost of sales
to approximately RMB69.2 million, representing approximately
28.2% of the overall cost of sales (2015: approximately
RMB67.8 million, representing approximately 15.6%), and an
increase of 2.0% over last year, where the overall proportion
of sales costs decreased by 43.8 percentage points over last
year.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease
in turnover which resulted in a decrease in purchase costs. Among
the costs of sales, the fixed costs (including labour costs and
depreciation charges) did not decrease as the turnover did, which
caused an increase in the proportion of the fixed costs in the overall
costs of sales, affecting the overall gross profit margin.
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Apart from the depreciation charges, the proportion of other cost of
sales, including raw materials, packaging materials, energy and fuel
costs, as well as direct labor costs and others, remained essentially
the same, except that the related amounts decreased with the drop
in sales as compared with the same period of last year.

Loss for the year

Although the Group reduced its product prices in the year under
review, the suspension of production led to a decrease in both
sales and gross profit. Also, impairment on the property, plant and
equipment and the land use rights largely increased the Group’s
loss during the period under review. The Group recorded a loss
of approximately RMB396.3 million (2015: profit amounted to
approximately RMB41.2 million).

The distribution costs decreased by approximately 64.9% to
approximately RMB15.5 million (2015: approximately RMB44.1
million). The main reason for the decrease was that the relevant
advertising and marketing expenses of our three wholly-owned
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) was
approximately RMBO.1 million in total for the year under review,
representing a decrease of approximately 99.0% over last year (2015:
approximately RMB14.2 million). Since last year, the Group further
reduced its investment in advertising resources substantially and
invested in other areas with more apparent benefits. The Group will
continue to participate in academic and new medicine promotion
seminars, as well as medicine trade fairs to introduce the advantages
of various medicines.

Administrative expenses increased approximately 57.2% over last
year to RMB82.8 million (2015: approximately RMB52.7 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to the equity-settled share-based
payment expenses for approximately RMB19.9 million (2015: Nil).

Furthermore, during the period under review, the Board identified
certain impairment indicators, among others, the turnover of
the Group did not increase as anticipated and the gross profit
deteriorated. In response to the impairment indicators identified, the
Group performed an impairment review of the recoverable amount
related to the Group’s production facilities in the Haixi plant.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the property, plant and
equipment and the land use rights located at the above production
factories had been allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU”)
and the recoverable amount of the Group’s production facilities is
determined through determining the recoverable amount of the CGU.

The Group determined the recoverable amount of the CGU on the
basis of value-in-use calculations, which adopted the discount cash
flow method, an income approach technique. The calculation was
based on, among others, the following:

- cash flow forecast for the next five years as approved by the
management, which had taken into account of the following
assumptions: budgeted sales, expected gross profit margins
and stable material price inflation rate of 3% per year (2015:
2%) during the next five-year period based on the Group’s past
performance, available market data and the management’s
reasonable expectations for the market development;
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- cash flow forecast beyond the fifth year is extrapolated using
an annual growth rate of 3% (2015: 2%) which is based on
industry and firm specific forecast;

- discount rate of approximately 13.5% (2015: 12.0%) by
adopting weighted average cost of capital; and

- reference to a valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer, APAC Assets Valuation and Consulting
Limited.

Based on the value-in-use calculation as above, the recoverable
amount of the CGU as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMB786.4 million, which was below the carrying amount of the CGU
as at 31 December 2016, i.e. RMB1,118.5 million. Accordingly,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of RMB332.1 million
in total, including RMB316.8 million and RMB15.3 million in the
property, plant and equipment and the land use rights respectively.
Due to the drop in sales demand, suspension of two production
lines in the Haixi plant due to the upgrading and enhancement of
existing production equipment for new GMP Certification and the
continuously deepening of the pharmaceutical system reform in
China, the Group has experienced significant drop in revenue and
gross profit during the year. In consideration of the uncertainty due to
marketing competition, government policies such as environmental
regulations and other reforms in laws and regulations, it is uncertain
whether the sales after obtaining new GMP Certification and the
completion of reconstruction work of the Haixi plant can resume back
to previous level. Hence, the management adopted a conservative
projected cash flow forecast which resulted in a significant
impairment loss. Such impairment loss was mainly attributable to
the non-cash accounting treatment on the impairment losses on
these production facilities, and mainly to reflect the value in use of
the assets. Accordingly, such impairment loss is a non-cash expense
with no impact on the Group’s cash flow or business and production
operations. No such impairment loss was provided for the non-
current assets including any production equipment for last year.

On 15 September 2016, the strong typhoon Meranti hit Fujian and
brought heavy rainfall to Haixi plant. Furthermore, on 8 November
2016, there was a rupture of the main underground steam pipelines
connecting all the production compartments occurred in the small
hours, which has destroyed and suspended the operation of pipelines
for water for injection, nitrogen gas, fire hose and sewage in the Haixi
plant. These incidents have caused damage on production facilities
and inventories, as a result the Group has written off RMB89.9
million and RMB13.0 million of property, plant and equipment and
inventories for the year respectively.
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Finally, tax credit of the Group amounted to approximately RMB107.1
million (2015: tax expenses of approximately RMB16.4 million). It
mainly included (i) deductible temporary differences arising from the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and land use rights
amounted to approximately RMB83.0 million (2015: Nil); (i) deductible
temporary difference arising from the write-off on property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately RMB22.5 million (2015:
Nil); and (iii) withholding deferred income tax for the provision of
undistributed profits for the three wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
PRC and the deferred tax credit amounted to approximately RMB1.9

million (2015: tax expenses of approximately RMB792,000).

4. Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and monitors
risks of credit cost, and also reviews the funding liquidity and
financing requirements regularly. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB147.5
million (2015: approximately RMB555.2 million) and most cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents during
the year under review was mainly due to the increase of capital
expenditure of the Group (see note 10 below). As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s secured bank loans which were secured by
land use rights and property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB85.6 million (2015: RMB35.0 million). The
loans were denominated in Renminbi, carried interest at fixed rates
ranged from 4.6% to 4.8% (2015: 5.0% and 6.4% respectively)
per annum and are repayable within 1 year. The Group continued
to maintain a stable financial position with low gearing and healthy
cash flows. The Group generated a net cash outflow from operating
activities of approximately RMB70.3 million (2015: net cash inflow of
approximately RMB70.8 million). During the year, the Group did not

use any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

The Group reviewed the capital structure by using a gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio representing the total debt, which includes trade and
other payables and secured bank loans of the Group divided by total
equity of the Group. The gearing ratio of the Group was approximately

10.9% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately 8.4%).

5. Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group conducted its
business transactions principally in Renminbi. The Group has not
experienced any material difficulties or negative impacts on its
operations as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange rates. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives
for hedging purpose. Therefore, the Group was not exposed to any

material interest and exchange risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals of Investments,
Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had no other
significant acquisitions and disposals of investments, subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures save as the following:

On 4 November 2016, Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (2N = Z B R A A]) (“Fuzhou Sanai”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a cooperation agreement (the
“Cooperation Agreement”) with Huifeng in respect of, among others,
the formation of the Antu County Chinese Medicines Technology
Development Company Limited (the “Associate Company”), the
provision of a shareholder’s loan to the Associate Company by
Fuzhou Sanai in the sum of approximately RMB112.7 million and the
cooperation regarding the planting, processing, production and sales
of Perillas and Perilla seeds. The Associate Company is a limited
company established in the PRC and is held as to 51% by Huifeng
and 49% by Fuzhou Sanai. The Associate Company will be principally
engaged in the planting, processing, production and sales of Perillas
and Perilla seeds based in Antu County of Jilin Province of the PRC.
Further details of the Corporation Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2017.

The Number and Remuneration of Employees

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group employed
approximately 355 employees (2015: 417 employees) with a staff
cost of approximately RMB33.2 million (2015: approximately
RMB54.4 million). The Group determines staff remuneration
in accordance with prevailing market salary scales, individual
qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages including
performance bonuses and entitlements to share options are reviewed
on regular basis.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group charged its assets including
land use rights and property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB167.1 million (2015: RMB94.4 million) in favour of
secured bank loans of RMB85.6 million (2015: RMB35.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2015: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, capital expenditure of the
Group for property, plant and equipment and for the construction
and development of existing factory located in Fujian Province for
its own use in our ordinary and usual course of business amounted
to approximately RMB435.5 million (2015: approximately RMB93.6
million). The increment was due to the capital expenditure incurred on
(i) the reconstruction work in the Haixi plant arising from the rupture of
the main underground steam pipelines connecting all the production
compartments and other damaged production facilities; and (ii) the
upgrades and enhancement on the production lines in the Haixi plant
in obtaining new GMP Certification.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements amounted to
approximately RMB30.9 million (2015: approximately RMB8.1
million).
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practice, such that the interests of our shareholders,
customers, employees as well as the long term development of the

Company can be safeguarded.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) during the year ended 31 December
2016 as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), ensuring that the Company is up to the
requirements of being diligent, accountable and professional, except for
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code in respect of the roles of
chairman (“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“Chief Executive Officer”)

of the Company as further elaborated below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the Company’s own code for securities transactions
by its Directors. In addition, the Company has made specific enquiries of
all Directors and each Director confirmed that during the year ended 31
December 2016, they fully complied with the required standards as set out

in the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board currently consists of six members,
with three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Ou Wen, Mr. Chen Cheng
Qing and Ms. Hung Hoi Lan, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Jie, Mr. Zhang Xue Wen and Mr. Wu Cheng
Han. All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics and
integrity. The biographical details of each Director are shown on pages 33

to 34 of this Annual Report.

Mr. Lin Ou Wen, the Chairman, is the younger brother of Mr. Lin Qing Ping.
Mr. Lin Min is the son of Mr. Lin Qing Ping. Mr. Lin Ou Wen is the uncle of
Mr. Lin Min. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies and policies of the
Group, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the

Company’s performance and oversight of the works of management.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and report to them at general
meetings. The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the

management, which is headed by the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategy and to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance
of the Company. The Chairman focuses on the Company’s strategy and is
responsible for chairing and managing the efficient operation of the Board
and ensuring that all key issues are considered by the Board in a timely
manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion
in the agenda whenever they consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings
are dispatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the
meeting. Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any,
in any proposals or transactions to be considered at Board meetings and
abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation. The Board meets at least 4 times a year, at approximately
quarterly intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each
period, material investments and other matters of the Company that require
the resolution of the Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to
improve attendance when individual Director cannot attend the meeting in
person. Opinions of the independent non-executive Directors are actively
sought by the Company if they are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”); all Directors have access to Board papers
and related materials, and are provided with adequate information in a
timely manner; this enables the Board to make informed decision on matters
placed before it.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the year under
review, the Board formulated the terms of reference on the corporate
governance duties and performed corporate governance duties in
accordance with the terms of reference. To be specific, the Board mainly
performed the following corporate governance duties during the year under
review:

o To review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees; and

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD ATTENDANCE
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had convened seven
Board meetings and two general meetings.
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Attendance records of the Directors are as follows:

BERzHECHENT

Number of
attendance of
Board meetings

Number of
attendance of
general meetings

Directors EEEEE BREREAE
BE R R
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lin Ou Wen (Chairman) MBS A (£ ) 7/7 2/2

Mr. Lin Qing Ping WEF LA 6/6 2/2
(retired with effect from 2 June 2016, (I = ZF—NFNHZHERE - (Note 1) (Note 1)
appointed with effect from 30 June 2016 H_E—NENAZHEEZT (BFEE1) (PFFEE1)
and resigned with effect Rd —F— NF A H P9 HEFHF)
from 14 October 2016)

Mr. Lin Min ESEE 3/3 1/1
(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016 (B =—F—NFENA=FHEEZT (Note 2) (Note 2)
and resigned with effect from R = FE—+F = F++ HEFT) (MfzE2) (Mi7E2)
17 February 2017)

Mr. Xu Chao Hui FTRRIE ST 3/3 1/1
(retired with effect from 2 June 2016) (I =—F—NFNH-HERET) (Note 3) (Note 3)

(H3%3) (BF3ES)

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Tang Bin BWkE 3/3 11
(retired with effect from 2 June 2016) (=F—NFNA=-HELET) (Note 3) (Note 3)

(MF3E3) (PFZES)

Mr. John Yang Wang FRGEE 1/4 0/1

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (BH=F—NENA=1HEFHT) (Note 4) (Note 4, 7)
(MisE4) (MizE4 - 7)

Mr. Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming BB sE 5T E 0/0 0/0

(resigned with effect from 3 March 2016) (I —F—NF=H=HEFT) (Note 5) (Note 5)
(MI3E5) (FF3ES)

Independent non-executive Directors BAFEHITES

Mr. Zhang Jie RELAE 3/3 0/1
(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (=—ZF—NENA=Z1THEEZ(T) (Note 6) (Note 6, 7)

(M5t 6) (MisE6 - 7)

Mr. Zhang Xue Wen REXEHE 3/3 1/1

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=—ZF—NENA=Z1HEEZ(T) (Note 6) (Note 6)
(MfzE.) (fFzES)

Mr. Wu Cheng Han R - 3/3 1/1

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=—ZF—NENA=Z1HEEZ(E) (Note 6) (Note 6)
(MfzE.) (fFzES)

Mr. Liu Jun RIE Sk 4/4 11

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (=F—NFENA=1HEFT) (Note 4) (Note 4)
(MI3x4) (FF&E4)

Mr. Lam Yat Cheong MBELAE 4/4 0/1

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFENA=1HEFT) (Note 4) (Note 4, 7)
(M 4) (MisE4 - 7)

Mr. Du Jian MEEAE 4/4 0/1

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFENA=1HEFT) (Note 4) (Note 4, 7)
(M 4) (MisE4 - 7)
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Note:

(1) Mr. Lin Qing Ping retired with effect from 2 June 2016, appointed with effect from 30
June 2016 and resigned with effect from 14 October 2016, only 6 Board meetings
and 2 general meetings were held during his appointment period.

) Mr. Lin Min was appointed with effect from 30 June 2016, only 3 Board meetings and

1 general meeting were held during his appointment period.

3 Mr. Xu Chao Hui and Mr. Tang Bin retired with effect from 2 June 2016, only 3 Board
meetings and 1 general meeting were held during their appointment period.

(4) Mr. John Wang Yang, Mr. Lam Yat Cheong, Mr. Liu Jun and Mr. Du Jian resigned with
effect from 30 June 2016, only 4 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held
during their appointment period.

5) Mr. Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming resigned with effect from 3 March 2016, no Board meeting
and general meeting was held during his appointment period.

(6) Mr. Zhang Jie, Mr. Zhang Xue Wen and Mr. Wu Cheng Han were appointed with effect
from 30 June 2016, only 3 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held during
their appointment period.

(7) Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should also attend general meetings.
Mr. John Wang Yang, a non-executive Director, Mr. Zhang Jie, Mr. Lam Yat Cheong
and Mr. Du Jian, the independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the general
meeting of the Company due to their own business arrangement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of an issuer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same person. The Company does not
at present separate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
Lin Ou Wen is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer responsible for
overseeing the operations of the Group. The Board considers that vesting
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person facilities the execution of the Company’s business strategies and
maximizes the effectiveness of its operations. On the other hand, there are
three independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all of them possess
adequate independence and therefore the Board considers the Company
has achieved balance of and provided sufficient protection to its interests
and the interests of its shareholders. The Board shall review the structure
from time to time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should
suitable circumstance arise.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In full compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
during the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has
appropriate professional accounting qualifications or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a term of one year. The appointment contracts will be
renewed every year and they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company. The responsibilities of the non-executive Directors include,
without limitation: regular attendance at meetings of the Board and of
board committees of which they are members; provision of independent
opinions at meetings of the Board and other board committees; resolution
of or taking the lead where there is potential conflict of interests; service
on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Company; and scrutinizing and monitoring the
performance of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August 2013 whereas
such Policy states the method by which the board diversity can be reached.

The Company has known the fact that the Board has become more
and more diversified day by day has helped the Company achieved its
strategic objective and has provided support for the Company’s sustainable
development.

The Company aims to achieve Board diversity by taking into consideration
of various factors including the age, culture and educational background,
race, professional experience, knowledge and other qualifications. When
the Company determines the best combination for the members of the
Board, it will, from time to time, take into consideration of its own business
mode and specific needs.

The Nomination Committee has designed measurable goals according
to four major aspects (namely, the age, professional qualification, term
of service and independence) for purposes of implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and considered that these goals have been achieved
satisfactorily during the year. The relevant goals will be reviewed from time
to time so as to ensure its appropriateness and its progress for achieving
such goals. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy (if it is appropriate) to ensure that such Policy continues to be
effective from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures of
the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in a wide range
of professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Companies Ordinance/Act and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in
Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills.
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From time to time, Directors are provided with written training materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; during the year under review,
the Company Secretary also organised and arranged seminars on the latest
development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to
assist them in discharging their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with the requirement
of the CG Code on continuous professional development during the period
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from 1 January to 31 December 2016:

Directors

E=

Bl :

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules and regulations

bEER/EH - RA

BBz RATRA
Attend
Read Seminars/
Materials Briefings

BMEME HERE/BRE

Accounting/Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills
it /0% R
HEMEERRE
Attend
Read Seminars/
Materials Briefings

MEME HERE/ RS

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Ou Wen (Chairman)
Mr. Lin Qing Ping
(retired with effect from 2 June 2016,

appointed with effect from 30 June 2016

and resigned with effect
from 14 October 2016)
Mr. Lin Min

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016

and resigned with effect from
17 February 2017)
Mr. Xu Chao Hui
(retired with effect from 2 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Bin

(retired with effect from 2 June 2016)
Mr. John Yang Wang

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming

(resigned with effect from 3 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jie

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Zhang Xue Wen

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Wu Cheng Han

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Liu Jun

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Lam Yat Cheong

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Du Jian

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016)
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance for
all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the year
2016/2017. The insurance covers them against costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are allocated
to three committees which operate under defined terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the Audit
Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows:

EEREIREET
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Directors Number of attendance
BE R
Independent non-executive Directors: BN EHITES !
Mr. Zhang Jie (Chairman) SREESAE (EFE)

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =ZF—NFNA=+HEEZT) 11
Mr. Zhang Xue Wen REXFEE

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFNA=FHEEZT) 1/1
Mr. Wu Cheng Han R E

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=—F—NFENA=FHEEZ) 1/1
Mr. Lam Yat Cheong (Chairman) MEBSRE(EF)

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNA=1+HEEFE) 2/2
Mr. Liu Jun RE L E

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNA="1HEFHE) 2/2
Mr. Du Jian kL

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F— NFNH=~1HEFE) 2/2

Each member can bring to the committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Company as each of them possesses management
experience in the accounting profession or commercial sectors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Company’s financial reporting system, financial
statements and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee also
monitors the appointment of the Company’s external independent auditor.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for inspection
on the Company’s website at www.wuyi-pharma.com and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year under
review, three meetings (on 24 March 2016, 6 April 2016 and 23 August
2016) were held. For the two meetings held on 24 March 2016 and 6
April 2016, the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 and the Company’s internal control
system reports were reviewed, and with recommendation to the Board
for further approval. For the meeting held on 23 August 2016, the Audit
Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statement of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the Company’s internal control
system reports were reviewed, and with recommendation to the Board
for further approval. The annual results announcement and annual report
of the Group and the reports on the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems for the year ended 31 December 2016 had also
been reviewed by the Audit Committee in the meeting held on 13 April
2017, with no disagreement among all Audit Committee members, and with
recommendation to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company has established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee and their attendance records for the year ended
31 December 2016 were as follows:
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Directors Number of attendance
2= HFER B
Executive Director: BITES:
Mr. Lin Ou Wen MBS 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BYIHITES :
Mr. Zhang Jie (Chairman) REESEAE(ER)

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFENA=1HEEZE) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Xue Wen REN S

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFENA=FHEEZ) 0/0
Mr. Wu Cheng Han R TE

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNA=+HEEST) 0/0
Mr. Lam Yat Cheong (Chairman) MBS LE(EF)

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNHA="1HEFHE) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jun RE R

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNH="1HEFE) 11
Mr. Du Jian ks

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (H —F—NFENH="1HEEFE) 11

The Board has delegated the authority to the Remuneration Committee
to review and recommend to the Board the compensation scheme of the
Directors as well as that of the senior management staff.

The main function of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
to oversee the Company’s remuneration packages, bonus and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management and establish
a transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Board shall provide sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has conducted
a meeting on 30 June 2016. The Remuneration Committee assisted
the Board to review and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of newly appointed executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available for inspection on the Company’s website at www.wuyi-
pharma.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company adopted a share option scheme for the senior management
and employees on 8 January 2007, which serves as incentives or rewards
to attract, retain and motivate staff.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference. The composition of the Nomination Committee and their
attendance records for the year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:
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Directors Number of attendance
= R B
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Lin Ou Wen (Chairman) MBS (EF) 1/1
Mr. Lin Qing Ping M‘F“gﬁf‘ﬁi

(retired with effect from 2 June 2016, (1= 7 ANFNAZ HERT -

appointed with effect from 30 June 2016 E: F—NFNA=FHEEZFL

and resigned with effect from B =F—NF A A1 EEEFE)

14 October 2016) 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors: BUEHTES
Mr. Zhang Jie REESEAE

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (H=F—NFNA=FHEEZ) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Xue Wen ?EE\X?EE

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (B —F—NFNA=1THEEZE) 0/0
Mr. Wu Cheng Han b&ﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁi

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2016) (=—F—NENA=F+HEEZT) 0/0
Mr. Lam Yat Cheong WHESE

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =F—NFNA=+HEFT) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jun %UES‘EE

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (B =—F—NFN A=+ HAEET) 11
Mr. Du Jian Ti%f‘ﬁi

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2016) (BH=F—NFNA=1HEFT) 1/1

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals who
are suitably qualified to become members of the Board, and to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. Having regard to
the independence and quality of nominees, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company and reviewing the
objectives set for implementing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy as
well as the composition and diversity of the Board. The Board shall provide
sufficient resources to the Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge
its duties.
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. The
retiring Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has conducted
a meeting on 30 June 2016, in which the members of Nomination
Committee performed appraisal of newly appointed executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, recommended the Board to appoint
them as Directors and certain of them as members of Board committees
and reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. During the year under review, the Nomination Committee also
monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the
Company’s website at www.wuyi-pharma.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
Senior management’s remuneration paid by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 falls within the following band:
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Number of individuals

AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/87C
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the external auditor or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of the auditor nationally
or internationally), for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$2,030,000.
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Fee paid and payable for
the year ended 31 December

ERENER
BHE+t-A=+—HILEE
2016
—E-RE
HK$
BT
Audit services* BEIZR 1,590,000
Other services, including: EART - B5F
the review of interim financial statements* HER A M RE 210,000
review risk management and internal HHRREE R AL RS
control systems 230,000
Total 5t 2,030,000
* Provided by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges their responsibility for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Board
acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for
keeping proper accounting records which disclose the financial position of

the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, has
presented their responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out

on page 48.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control
and has ultimate responsibilities for overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis. The Board is also committed to review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal

control systems at least annually.

The Group established the risk management and internal control systems
with aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision

making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code, the Board has engaged an independent professional firm as an
outsourced internal auditor to facilitate the Group’s internal audit function to
be equipped with adequate resources and to conduct reviews as required
by the Stock Exchange and to assist the Audit Committee and the Board
to perform review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016 at least

annually.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has established
an internal audit charter which defined the scope and the duties and
responsibilities of the internal audit function and its reporting protocol. The
Group has conducted an annual risk assessment which identified respective
strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks for
each of the major business operations of the Group. Risk factors were
analyzed and consolidated at the Group level. Based on the risk assessment
results following a risk based methodology audit approach, a three-year
internal audit plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into

respective annual internal audit projects accordingly.
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An annual review was performed by the independent professional internal
auditor firm according to the internal audit plan with a view to assisting
the Audit Committee and the Board to evaluate the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The review also covered the compliance
of code provisions as set out in the CG Code and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls at entity and
operational levels. The Company has taken further steps to enhance its
risk management and internal control systems according to some control
weaknesses that were found during risk assessment and examination of the
internal control system and strengthened the implementation of all the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has established procedures in handling and dissemination
of inside information in an accurate and secure manner to avoid possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group. Release of inside
information is subject to the approval of the Board. Unless duly authorized,
all staff members of the Company shall not communicate inside information
to any external parties and shall not respond to market speculation and
rumours. In addition, all external presentation materials or publications must
be pre-vetted before release.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established
and maintained by the Group, the work performed by the internal and
external auditors, the Audit Committee and the Board performed an annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016 and are of the view
that the Group has maintained effective and adequate risk management and
internal control systems during the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The former Company Secretary, Mr. Kung Wai Chiu, Marco, resigned with
effect from 13 June 2016. The Company Secretary appointed with effect
from 13 June 2016, Mr. Luk Ting Fung, undertook not less than 15 hours of
professional training during the year under review in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that shareholders’ rights should be well
respected and protected. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communications with shareholders on its performance through interim
reports, annual reports, general meetings and public disclosure on the
Company’s website (www.wuyi-pharma.com) and the website of the
Stock Exchange, so that they may make an informed assessment for their
investments and exercise their rights as shareholders. The Company also
encourages shareholders’ participation through general meetings or other
means. Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary to the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 1113, 11th Floor, North
Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting and putting

forward proposals at general meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)

by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to
be put forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 1113, 11th Floor,
North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The requisitionists must state in their request(s)
the objects of the extraordinary general meeting to be convened, and
such request must be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon receipt, the
Company will verify the requisitionists’ particulars and if the request is
in order, the Company will convene the extraordinary general meeting in

accordance with its articles of association.

CHANGE OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there was no significant change to the articles

of association of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Ou Wen, aged 60, is the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director and founding shareholder. Mr. Lin graduated from Fujian
Normal University with a bachelor’s degree in physics in 1983. He is a senior
economist. He is also the chairman and a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He has over 15 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. He is the younger brother of Mr. Lin Qing Ping and the uncle of Mr.
Lin Min, each a former Director.

Mr. Chen Cheng Qing, aged 39, is an entrepreneur with more than 20
years of experience in business management in the PRC. Mr. Chen is
currently the chairman of Guizhou Changtong Cable Co., Ltd., the vice
president of Pingba District Federation of Industry and Commerce, the
executive vice president of Anshun Zhejiang Federation of Commerce, a
member of Pingba District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the vice president of Guizhou Wenzhou
Federation of Commerce. He was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 17 February 2017. He is the sole shareholder and director of
Cyber Success Global Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in approximately 18.49% of the total number of issued
shares in the Company.

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan, aged 27, graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with
a bachelor’s degree in marketing in 2011. She later obtained a master
degree of science in hospitality with tourism management from University
of Birmingham in 2013. She started operating wine business ran by her
family during her studies in the United Kingdom and has joined the business
development department of Hilton Beijing since 2013. She was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 17 February 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Jie, aged 33, obtained a bachelor’s degree in banking and
international finance and a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Flinders
University in Australia in 2010. In 2011, he obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Flinders University in Australia. He served
as a senior auditor of an international audit services firm and is currently
a senior consultant of a financial consultancy firm, focusing on enterprise
consultation services. He is a CPA in Australia. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2016.

Mr. Zhang Xue Wen, aged 45, graduated from Xiamen University with a
bachelor’s degree in laws in 1994. He later obtained a master’s degree in
laws from Xiamen University in 2004 and was awarded a doctorate degree
in laws from Xiamen University in 2009. He was appointed as a judge
of the Fuzhou Intermediate People’s Court in Fujian Province. He was
also an associate researcher of the Faculty of Law of Fuzhou University.
From November 2010 to April 2016, he engaged in postdoctoral research
work at the Institute of Law of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
He currently serves as a researcher of the Institute of Law of the Fujian
Academy of Social Science, a member of China Law Society, a council
member of China Commercial Law Society and an arbitrator of Fuzhou
Arbitration Commission. Mr. Zhang was on the list of 2013 Fujian Province
Million Talents Project at provincial level, and has been awarded the Social
Sciences Outstanding Achievement Award (Fujian Province) for several
times. His published literary works and academic papers are also abundant.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 30 June 2016.
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Mr. Wu Cheng Han, aged 59, graduated from Guangzhou First Military
Medical University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree. He once served as the
chief doctor in Neurology of Nanjing Military Zone Fuzhou General Hospital
and a professor of Fujian University of Traditional Chinese Medicine. He
is currently the chief doctor of the Second People’s Hospital of Fujian
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine. He has been a standing
committee member of the 11th session of Fujian Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also
a member, deputy chairman, vice-president, standing committee member,
senior advisor and so forth of various medical associations. Mr. Wu has
been awarded the Outstanding Award for Academic Dissertation in Natural
Science (Fujian Province) for several times. He is an editor for various
medical journals and the inventor of various patents. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Zhi Chuan, aged 52, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge
of financial management. He graduated from Fuzhou University with a
bachelor’s degree in Finance in 1988. He has over 16 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. He joined the Group in January 2001.

Mr. Cheng Shi De, aged 58, is the Deputy General Manager in charge
of production. He graduated from Anhui Province Medical School with a
bachelor’s degree in pharmacy in 1982. He is a senior engineer. He has over
32 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He joined the Group
in June 2002.

Ms. Yang Ai Min, aged 41, is the manager of sales and marketing.
She graduated from Fujian Medical University with a bachelor’s degree
in pharmacy in 1998. She has over 19 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. She joined the Group in January 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Luk Ting Fung, aged 32, is the Company Secretary and Financial
Controller of the Company. Mr. Luk graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science in Molecular
Biotechnology. He has over 7 years of experience working in an international
audit services firm and an investment bank, focusing on auditing and equity
research and analysis. Mr. Luk also served as the senior finance manager
in a chain department store listed on the Stock Exchange, responsible for
accounting, financial management, tax planning and management, and
business advisory services. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been registered as a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong since 2015. He joined the Group in
June 2016.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report together with the
audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 55.

The Board of Directors do not suggest declaring any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil) to the shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 8 June 2017 to
Friday, 16 June 2017 (both days inclusive). In order to be qualified for
attending the annual general meeting in 2017, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB1,129,716,000 (2015: RMB1,023,122,000). Movements
in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year under review
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 57 and
in note 29 to the financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company during the
year under review are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 376,000,000 ordinary
shares were issued upon placing under general mandate. Details of the
abovementioned placing can be found under the paragraph headed
“Placing Agreement” in this section.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
under review are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of associations or the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares in the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Group has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year under review and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lin Ou Wen
Mr. Chen Cheng Qing

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 17 February 2017)

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan (appointed with effect from 17 February 2017)

Mr. Lin Qing Ping (retired with effect from 2 June 2016, appointed
with effect from 30 June 2016 and resigned
with effect from 14 October 2016)

Mr. Lin Min (appointed with effect from 30 June 2016 and
resigned with effect from 17 February 2017)

Mr. Xu Chao Hui (retired with effect from 2 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Bin

Mr. John Yang Wang

(retired with effect from 2 June 2016)
(resigned with effect from 30 June 20176)

Mr. Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming  (resigned with effect from 3 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jie (appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Zhang Xue Wen (appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Wu Cheng Han (appointed with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Liu Jun (resigned with effect from 30 June 2016)

Mr. Lam Yat Cheong (resigned with effect from 30 June 20176)

Mr. Du Jian (resigned with effect from 30 June 20176)

According to the requirements of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Lin Ou Wen, Mr. Chen Cheng Qing, Ms. Hung Hoi Lan, Mr. Zhang Jie,
Mr. Zhang Xue Wen and Mr. Wu Cheng Han will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All of the independent non-executive Directors are members of the
Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management are set out
on pages 33 to 34 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (including Directors standing for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has entered into any contract of
service, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has renewed the Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The insurance covers them against costs,
charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate
activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the contracts of service entered into with respective Directors, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year under review.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company is aware of any Director or Chief Executive of the Company who
has any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “
Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2016 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FTERRRART 2RO REERDH

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE ERRKRE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons, other than a Director or R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 UTAL(E
Chief Executive of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the EHARRDNRETEITHAERIN) RARQ RN

shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register SUERIR G P A R IRE S M EE &5 55 336
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: BBERSEN AR R 1B IR 2 S sloR

BT
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of shares (Note 6)

shareholder (Note 1) AR

BEREE Capacity BHEE ERalnd

HE g1 (PfF3E1) (M5t 6)

Cyber Success Global Beneficial owner (Note 2) 417,303,000 (L) 18.49%
Investments Limited BEmEA A (HE2)

RIRRIKIEE AR A A

Chen Cheng Qing Interest of controlled 417,303,000 (L) 18.49%

PR A B corporation (Note 2)

EEAERER (i 2)
Pope Investments LLC Beneficial owner (Note 3) 102,400,000 (L) 4.54%
BEanEA A (M3)
Wells William P. Interest of controlled 102,400,000 (L) 4.54%
corporation (Note 3)
B g (EE3)

Credit Suisse Beneficial owner (Note 4 & 5) 133,545,000 (L) 5.92%
(Hong Kong) EnEAA (M4 %5) 66,772,500 (S) 2.96%
Limited

Credit Suisse Interest of controlled 133,545,000 (L) 5.92%
(International) corporation (Note 4 & 5) 66,772,500 (S) 2.96%
Holding AG Sk EEss (4 R5)

Credit Suisse Interest of controlled 138,545,000 (L) 5.92%

corporation (Note 4 & 5) 66,772,500 (S) 2.96%
ZiEEEER (T4 &5)

China Medical Service Beneficial owner 171,000,000(L) 7.58%
Investment Holding EEEA
Limited
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Notes:

©)

The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short position in the shares
respectively.

These shares are registered in the name of Cyber Success Global Investments
Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chen Cheng Qing, an individual who was
subsequently appointed as an executive Director on 17 February 2017. Mr. Chen
Cheng Qing is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Cyber Success
Global Investments Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

In accordance with the individual substantial shareholder notice on disclosure of
interests of Wells William P. and the corporate substantial shareholder notice on
disclosure of interests of Pope Investments LLC. both filed on 7 February 2007,
these shares are registered in the name of Pope Investments LLC, which is controlled
by Pope Asset Management LLC, which is in turn controlled by Wells William P..
In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notice on disclosure
of interests of Pope Asset Management LLC filed on 26 June 2013, Pope Asset
Management LLC ceased to have a notifiable interest pursuant to the SFO since 26
June 2013.

In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notices on disclosure of
interests of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, Credit Suisse (International) Holding
AG and Credit Suisse all filed for the relevant event took place on 1 February 2007,
these shares are registered in the name of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, which
is owned as to 94.75% by Credit Suisse (International) Holding AG, which is in turn
wholly owned by Credit Suisse. Therefore, Credit Suisse (International) Holding AG
and Credit Suisse are deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Credit Suisse
(Hong Kong) Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notices on disclosure of
interests of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, Credit Suisse (International) Holding
AG and Credit Suisse all filed for the relevant event took place on 1 February 2007,
these shares are registered in the name of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, which
is owned as to 94.75% by Credit Suisse (International) Holding AG, which is in turn
wholly owned by Credit Suisse. Therefore, Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, Credit
Suisse (International) Holding AG and Credit Suisse are deemed to hold or hold a
short position of 66,772,500 shares as defined under Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 2,256,772,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

Save for the disclosed above, the Company was not aware of any person
who had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares in
the Company which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Sale and Purchase Agreement for packaging materials

On 5 December 2014, Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Sanai”)
and Fuzhou Sanai, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Fuzhou Hongyu Packing Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Hongyu”) in
respect of the sale and purchase of packaging materials, including paper
cartons and packaging colour boxes, from Fuzhou Hongyu for a term of 3
years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

The entire share capital of Fuzhou Hongyu is owned by Lin Ou Wen, the
Chairman, an executive Director and a then substantial shareholder of
the Company. Accordingly, Fuzhou Hongyu is a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules.

By reference to (i) the actual amounts of the transactions under the previous
sale and purchase agreement in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions in the recent years; (i) the estimated demand for packaging
materials for the products of Fujian Sanai from Fuzhou Hongyu for the
term of the Sale and Purchase Agreement; (iii) the estimated demand for
packaging materials for the products of Fuzhou Sanai from Fuzhou Hongyu
for the term of the Sale and Purchase Agreement; (iv) the possible increase
in demand for the packaging materials for the products of Fujian Sanai
and Fuzhou Sanai led by the improvement and possible expansion of the
Group’s medicine business; and (v) the estimated inflation rate and increase
in costs including the labour costs in the PRC leading to the increase of
manufacturing costs for the packaging materials, the annual caps are set at
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,756,000) for each of the
years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017.

The actual transaction amount under the Sale and Purchase Agreement is
determined by the quantity of packaging materials ordered and received
by Fujian Sanai and Fuzhou Sanai times the unit purchase prices of the
packaging materials. The unit purchase prices of the packaging materials
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement were determined by reference
to (i) the current market price of similar products in the market; (i) the unit
purchase prices of the packaging materials offered by the independent
third parties to Fujian Sanai and Fuzhou Sanai in their ordinary course of
business; and (iii) the manufacturing costs for the packaging materials
including labour costs.

The actual transaction amount under the Sale and Purchase Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB1,284,000.

The reasons for entering into the Sale and Purchase Agreement were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 December 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of businesses of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms;

(c)  according to the relevant written agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and

(d)  without exceeding the relevant cap amount.

The above continuing connected transactions are subject to the

requirements of reporting and announcement under the Listing Rules and

the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform works on
the continuing connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section of the Annual Report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The related party transactions disclosed in the Note 34 to the financial
statements constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for, among others, the senior management and employees on 8
January 2007, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract, retain and
motivate staff. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

On 14 October 2016, 164,000,000 share options were granted to certain
grantees to subscribe for up to a total of 164,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company (the “Share Option”) under the Share Option
Scheme. The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:
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Number of share options
BREHE
Closing
price of
the shares
immediately
Cancelled before
or lapsed At the date
At 1 January Granted during Exercised 31 December of grant
Category of 2016 during the year during 2016 Exercise  BERMH
participant R=B-RE the year EREH theyear WZZ—R%E Date of grant Exercise period price A&l
SEALER -A-H EREH EPR ERTR TZA=T-B RUHAH N iRE ROEUHE
(HKS) (HKS)
(B7) (B7)
Non-employees
in aggregate - 164,000,000 - - 164,000,000 14 October 2016 14 October 2016 to 0.32 0.31
FES Y —ERE 13 October 2021
TATEA
- 164,000,000 - - 164,000,000

Note: The Share Options do not subject to any vesting period. The Company has received
consideration of HK$8 pursuant to the Share Options, details of the valuation of the
Share Options as at the date of grant are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the Share
Options in cash at any time.

Save for 164,000,000 Share Options granted mentioned above, no option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. As at 31 December
2016, the total number of ordinary shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 300,000, which represents
approximately 0.01% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this
Annual Report. The Share Option Scheme expired on 31 January 2017.
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Placing Agreement

On 9 September 2016, in order to enlarge the shareholder base and the
capital base of the Company as well as strengthening the Group’s financial
position for future development of the Group, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, on a best effort
basis, 376,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
to not less than six independent placees at HK$0.22 per new share. The
completion of the placing is conditional upon the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange granting approval for the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the placing shares. The above placing was completed on 23 September
2016 with not less than six independent placees and the net proceeds
amounted to approximately RMB69.3 million (equivalent to HK$80.5 million,
representing a net placing price of HK$0.21 per placing share). As at 31
December 2016, approximately RMB31.1 million of the net proceeds
were being applied as investment in short-term equity securities, with the
remaining as cash deposits in a financial institution in Hong Kong.

On 9 September 2016, being the date of the placing agreement, the closing
price of the Company’s shares was HK$0.265 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of
the Company published on 9 September 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ emoluments on an individual and named basis
and the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and
12 respectively to the financial statements. The remuneration policies of the
Group are as follows:

- The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the employees is
determined according to their relevant experience, responsibilities,
workload, contributions and years of service in the Group and with
reference to the goals and objectives of the Group;

- The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board (or by the
relevant management after consultation with the Board) and may
be provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or the
employees; and

- No person participates in the deliberation or approval of his own
remuneration package.

The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:—

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by case basis
of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(i) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the Board to
the relevant Directors under their remuneration package; and

(i) the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board and in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules, with share
options under the share option scheme adopted by the Company, as
part of their remuneration package.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information of revenue and purchases attributable to the major
customers and suppliers of the Company for the year under review is as
follows:

Revenue from sales of goods HEEmBRH
or rendering of services RSk E

The largest customer SEARF

Five largest customers in aggregate AARFEAH

Purchases BB

The largest supplier SABER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAHERAE H

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted
above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report for the corporate governance principles and practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 20 to 32 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this Annual Report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS
During this year, the Group did not make any charitable donations (2015:
Nil).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Based
on specific enquiry made with all Directors, the Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the accounting
period covered by this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, none of the Directors or any of their connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to or involved in at the
end of the year under review or at any time during the year under review.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors had an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict of
interest with the Company during the year under review.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board has established
an audit committee on 8 January 2007, with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the financial reporting
procedures and internal control and risk management systems and
provides guidance in relation thereto. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Company as well as the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 before recommending to
the Board for approval.

AUDITOR
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by Messrs. Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited. A
resolution will be submitted at the annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Future Development

The discussion on the Group’s business performance and future
development, being part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the
paragraphs headed “Business Review” and “Outlook” of the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The analysis of the Group’s key financial performance indicators, being
part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the paragraph headed “Financial
Review” of the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Our newly launched products may not be well received by the market.
The success of a pharmaceutical company depends, to a large extent,
on whether the products it introduces to the market are well received by
the market. The primary factors which may affect the acceptance of our
products by the market include efficacy, quality and price. In particular,
the introduction of new products requires substantial investment of capital
resources and research and development efforts. If any of our new drugs
is not well received by the market because its efficacy is not as good as
expected, it is too expensive compared to other substitutes, or for any other
reason, we may not be able to recoup the investment we have made in
developing such new drug, in which case our financial condition and results
of operations may be materially adversely affected.

Our Group rely on third parties, such as hospitals, clinics and pharmacies,
in selling our prescription and over-the-counter products.

We rely on different channels in selling our products in China. Our over-
the-counter pharmaceutical products are sold mainly to consumers
through pharmacies. Our prescription pharmaceutical products are sold
mainly to hospitals and clinics for consumption by their patients. There
is no assurance that pharmacies and hospitals and clinics will continue
to stock and prescribe our products over those of our competitors, there
are no contractual restrictions preventing our sales channels from selling
our competitors’ products. If our sales channels treat our competitors’
products more favorably or stop selling our products, and we are unable to
find appropriate substitutes, our business and results of operations may be
materially adversely affected.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

The pharmaceutical industry is extremely competitive.

Our business is subject to competition from other pharmaceutical
manufacturers. Chinese and international pharmaceutical manufacturers
engaged in the manufacture and sale of substitute or similar products
to ours in China may have more capital resources, better research and
development capabilities and more experience in manufacturing and
marketing. Many of our competitors, including large pharmaceutical
companies and other generic drug manufacturers, have employed various
strategies intended to maximize their market share for previously-patented
products. Competition is likely to intensify if (i) the number of manufacturers
or distributors of substitute or similar products increases due to increased
market demand or increased prices; (i) competitors drastically reduce
prices due to oversupply of products; or (i) competitors develop new
products or substitute products having comparable medicinal applications
or therapeutic effects that may be used as direct substitutes for our
products which are more effective with prices comparable to or lower than
our products. If any of the above occurs, our profitability may be adversely
affected.

Our Company is subject to environmental regulations and may be exposed
to liability and potential costs for environmental compliance.

We are subject to the PRC laws and regulations concerning the discharge of
effluent water and solid waste during our manufacturing processes. We are
required to obtain certain clearances and authorizations from governmental
authorities for the treatment and disposal of such discharge. Any violation
of these regulations may result in substantial fines, criminal sanctions,
revocation of operating permits, shutdown of our facilities and obligation
to take corrective measures. Our cost of complying with current and future
environmental protection laws and regulations, and liabilities which may
potentially arise from the discharge of effluent water and solid waste, may
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The government may take steps towards the adoption of more stringent
environmental regulations and there is no assurance that we will be at all
times in full compliance with these regulatory requirements. Due to the
possibility of unanticipated regulatory or other developments, the amount
and timing of future environmental expenditures may vary substantially
from those currently anticipated. If there is any unanticipated change in
the environmental regulations, we may need to incur substantial capital
expenditures to install, replace, upgrade or supplement our pollution control
equipment or make operational changes to limit any adverse impact or
potential adverse impact on the environment in order to comply with new
environmental protection laws and regulations. If such costs become
prohibitively expensive, we may be forced to modify, curtail or cease certain
of our business operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection to the
sustained stable development of enterprises. Striving to strike the best
balance between cost control and environmental protection, the Group
consistently executes the measures of clean production, energy saving,
reducing consumption, etc. The Group also carries out regular reviews on
various environmental protection measures and routine jobs, to ensure
that all environmental protection permission and approval required by the
regulatory authorities of the PRC will be granted.

In the meantime, the Group endeavours to create an environmentally-
friendly work environment to promote the environmental awareness to
employees by encouraging them to use less electricity and paper, and
recycle office supplies and other materials.
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The Company shall issue the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
separately in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE COMPANY

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, marketing and
selling of branded prescription and non-prescription drugs as well as
Chinese pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The production of all
pharmaceutical products must comply with the current Good Manufacturing
Practice standard of the PRC, and be approved by the China Food and
Drug Administration. The Group also needs to comply with the Production
Safety Law, Law on Employment Contracts and Company Law of the
PRC. As the Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company is also required to comply with the Listing Rules and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group is not aware of any
occurrence of material breach of laws or regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

The Group acknowledges that as the PRC is in the midst of the critical
period for healthcare system reform, laws, regulations and policies
regarding the healthcare and pharmaceutical industry will be updated
frequently. Hence, it will pay close attention to the updates and timely
implement the measures required by the relevant laws and regulations so as
to ensure the business and operation are free from adverse effects.

IMPORTANT RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain good working relationship
with the employees. The Group provides directors and senior management
with continuous professional training, including seminars and workshops,
such that the latest changes of regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices can be introduced. Aiming to raise the operational
efficiency, the Group also organises various pre-employment and on-
the-job trainings to deepen the employees’ understanding of its business
objectives and operation. In the aspect of safeguarding the occupational
safety and health of employees, the Group spares no effort to provide
employees with a safe work environment and enhance their health
and safety awareness. In addition, the Group provides competitive
remuneration, rewards program, retirement and medical benefits to attract
and incentivise employees.

Suppliers

The Group selects the suppliers prudently and requires them to satisfy
certain evaluation criteria, including track records, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to manufacture high-quality products, etc. The
Group has developed long-term collaborative relationship with various
suppliers and endeavours to make sure that they comply with the Group’s
commitment to quality and ethics.

Sales Agents and Distributors

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and drug
stores through sales agents and distributors. The Group requires the sales
agents and distributors to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Group’s marketing policies. The Group also collaborates with the
distributors by providing training for their frontline salespersons to ensure
that they provide high-quality sales services.
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Hospitals and Doctors

The pharmaceutical products of the Group are mainly sold to 27 key
provinces, cities and autonomous regions around the country. The Group
continues to organise and participate in promotional activities such as
seminars and pharmaceutical product launch events. The Group also keeps
in touch with, explains and illustrates the clinical application of the Group’s
pharmaceutical products to doctors within the sales network through sales
agents and distributors.

On behalf of the Board

LIN OU WEN
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 April 2017
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B AT E

Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WUYI INTERNATIONAL PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wuyi International
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 55 to 135, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BEEEE (& SEMEBMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International
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9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land use rights

Refer to notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies set out on pages 70-74

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has experienced a
significant drop in revenue during the
year. Further, on 8 November 2016,
the operations of all the production
compartments in the Group’s
production plant located in the Haixi
Industrial and Trading Development
Zone in Jianyang City, Fujian Province,
China (the “Haixi Plant”) have been
temporarily suspended as a result of
a rupture of the main underground
steam pipelines connecting all the
production compartments occurred,
which has destroyed and suspended
the operation of pipelines for water for
injection, nitrogen gas, fire hose and
sewage.

Considered as a key audit matter
due to its importance to the financial
statements and the application of
the relevant accounting policies
included management’s judgement
and reliance to a considerable extent
on the financial budget and cash flow
projections.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures in relation to
management’s impairment assessment
included:-

o Discussed with management
about indicators of possible
impairment;

o Assessed the methodologies

of and the appropriateness
of key assumptions used by
management in the forecast;

o Checked the accuracy and
relevance of input data used by
management in the forecast;

o Evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional
valuers and the valuation
methodologies employed;

o Used our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodology
used by management in the
preparation of its discounted
cash flow forecast and the
valuations performed by
independent professional
valuers;

o Compared the most significant
inputs used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts prepared in
the prior year with the current
year’s performance of the
Group to assess the accuracy
of management’s forecasting
process and enquired
management for any significant
variations identified; and

o Assessed the discount rates
used in the discounted cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking
against other similar companies.
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Business combination and impairment of goodwill

Refer to notes 19 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies set out on pages 63-65 and 70-74

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has completed the
acquisition of Fujian Liumai Medical
Services Co., Limited (“Fujian
Liumai”) on 16 December 2016 at a
consideration of HK$145,000,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB124,304,000).

As a result of the acquisition, the
Group recognised goodwill of
RMB107,055,000.

Considered as a key audit matter as
the acquisition is material and requires
the use of significant management
judgement regarding the identification
of intangible assets acquired and the
valuation of the assets and liabilities
acquired. The valuation of certain
assets involve the use of estimates
regarding future cash flows.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures included:—

o Considered and challenged
management’s assessment
of the appropriate accounting
treatment, the identification
and valuation of tangible and
intangible assets and the
allocation of purchase price
to the assets and liabilities
acquired;

o Evaluated the assumptions
and methodologies used by
the Group and independent
professional valuer in the
determination of the fair value
of contingent consideration
payable;

o Evaluated and challenged
the Group’s future cash flow
forecasts in the cash generating
unit, and by which they were
drawn up, including testing
the underlying value in use
calculations;

o Challenged management’s
key assumptions within the
model such as the revenue
growth rate and gross profit
margin and compared these
key assumptions to externally
derived data;

. Used our internal valuation
specialists to assist us
in critically assessing the
appropriateness and valuation
of the identified intangible
assets, the methodology used
by the management in the
preparation of its discounted
cash flows forecasts and the
appropriateness of the discount
rates and long term growth rate
and comparing the inputs used
in determining the discount rate;

° Understood the Group’s
impairment testing process,
including the valuation
model adopted, allocation
of cash generating units and
assumptions used;

o Assessed the discount rates
used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against
other similar companies; and

o Evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional
valuers.
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Revenue recognition

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

set out on page 80.

The Key Audit Matter

Considered as a key audit matter as
revenue is a key performance indicator
of the Group.

The principal activities of the Group
include sales of pharmaceutical
products, sales of softwares and
provision of consultancy services.
There is a risk of improper revenue
recognition, particularly with regard to
cut-off at period end dates.

The risk has increased in the current
year due to the acquisition which have
resulted in new revenue streams for the
Group.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

We selected a sample of sales
transactions. Our procedures in relation
to those transactions included:—

o Understanding of and tested the
key controls in respect of the
Group’s revenue recognition;

o Read the signed sales and
purchase agreements to identify
contractual arrangements;

o Reconciled the monetary
amounts to the signed sales and
purchase agreements;

o Scrutinised manual journals
related to revenue to assess
the timing and fair values of
revenues recorded;

. Conducted substantive
analytical procedures on
revenue;

. Obtained evidence for the

transfer of effective control of
ownership; and

o Tested the recognition of sales
transactions close to the end of
the reporting period to assess
whether those sales transactions
were recorded in appropriate
accounting period in accordance
with the Group’s revenue
recognition policy.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Oor error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other persons for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AT E

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 13 April 2017

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss on land use rights

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Written off on property, plant
and equipment

Written off on inventories

Share of results of an associate

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
— Basic and diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—Z—

meBskEMEEKER

NE+ZA=+—BILLFE

2016 2015

—E-XEF —E—hE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B3 AR¥ETT AREFIT

ez 8 263,025 555,652

SHER AR (245,062) (436,045)

EF 17,963 119,607

Hoh Wz 9 14,196 1,978
s PR R A3 -

BEREE2F (BE),

W zs 10(c) (7 35,003
S ER (15,478) (44,112)
THEA (82,781) (52,660)
BLE KA 10(a) (2,117) Q2M)
T AR E AR 17 (15,261)

ME - BB REE

RIBEE 16 (316,841) =

Y%~ BRE KR e

16 (89,931) =
FEMH 22 (13,036) =
i3 NS (105) =
BB IEAT (E518) 5 10 (503,398) 57,575
FRiSHi 13 107,140 (16,372)
RARBEE ANEEFEA

(E518) %7 (396,258) 41,203
FRHMEERES - =
KAREB AEIEER

2 (E518), W15

(396,258) 41,203
B (ER), /B
—EAREE 15

The notes on pages 60 to 135 form part of these financial statements.

RMB(20.0) cents
AR (20.0) 2

RMB2.4 cents
AR#2.45

2602 PN RERE R AN BA TS R 2 —

HREBEZERDE o« —F—RFEER

@
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@ Conslidated Statement of Financial Position
- ZEBBRRE

As at 31 December 2016 R=—ZE—F+=-_A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ZT—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARBT T AREFTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BRE R 16 750,373 796,531
Land use rights T fE A 17 36,137 52,632
Goodwill EES 19 107,055 =
Other intangible assets HitmpaE 18 3,918 =
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 28(b) 169,736 64,478
Interests in an associate B E N AR 21 4,795 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of BLUEERT B A7)
a subsidiary BEffiEe 35 - 52,875
1,072,014 966,516
Current assets REVEE
Inventories "rE 22 14,133 30,785
Trade and other receivables B 5 REUGRIE K& E A
FEMRIA 23 112,280 142,384
Tax recoverable AT 175 18 28(a) 336 =
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFABRZ
through profit or loss CREE 24 41,977 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 25 147,547 555,247
316,273 728,416
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 MR IE REAM
e FRIA 26 49,546 94,800
Secured bank loans BHEBRITER 27 85,600 35,000
Current taxation EHRIE 28(a) 988 5,045
136,134 134,845
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 28(b) 13,736 14,622
Net assets FEE 1,238,417 1,545,465
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital f& 7N 29(b) 21,762 18,527
Reserves & 1,216,655 1,526,938
Total equity attributable to owners RAEEE AEM
of the Company R 1,238,417 1,545,465
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 13 April ER-_E—t+ENA+=ALEESHERE
2017 and signed on its behalf by: BERE WHILTATRRESZ
Lin Ou Wen Chen Cheng Qing
MBS PR ER B
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
FERITEARE HITEFE
The notes on pages 60 to 135 form part of these financial statements. E60E 1358 MM B NI T53RE 2 — 35 o
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At 1 January 2015

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Issue of consideration shares
(note 29(b)()

Transfer to statutory surplus
reserve

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year

Shares issued under placement
(note 29(o)(il)

Equity-settled share-based
transactions (note 30)

Transfer to statutory surplus
reserve

At 31 December 2016

R-E-HF—f-H
ARG EE
EARERR (M 29(0)0)
ERTITRR

G

RZE-R%t-f=1-A
k=F-~F-f-H

EREER2ABRLE
RERERTZRH
(P 29(0)()

WEREEL R AER
X5 (W 30)

BEEERRR
i

RZF-"ETZA=1-A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

NETZA=+—BIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

Attributable to owners of the Company

ZE=E—

Retained
Statutory Non- profits/
Share surplus  distributable ~ (accumulated
Share Share option Special Capital reserve reserve losses) Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve B | REER  equity
RE  RAGE BRERE GHRE  EARE  BHER  ANER  /(BHER) 4%
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
2900) 29(c)) 30 20 29 29)) 29(cl)
(M (BsE Bz (M (BsE (BsE (BsE
20)  290)) ) 20 ) 200M) 29l
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
17,008 929,533 - (124,100) 53,000 260,021 23,752 209,883 1,451,387
- - - - - - - 41203 41,203
1,429 51,446 - - - - - - 52875
- - - - - 9,777 - ©9.777) -
18,527 980,979 - (124,106) 53,000 262,004 23,752 331,309 1,545,465
- - - - - - - (396,258)  (396,258)
3,235 66,059 - - - - - - 69,204
- - 19916 - - - - - 19,916
- - - - - 2,193 - 2,193 -
2,762 1,047,038 19916 (124,106) 53,000 264,197 23,752 (67,142) 1,238,417

The notes on pages 60 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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@ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o =
n'l_\ é IE, ﬁ)ﬁz '%%
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—E—A~"F+-A=1+—HIFE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Operating activities REEY
(Loss)/profit before tax BRAE AT (&518) A (503,398) 57,575
Adjustments for: BT EEAE
Interest income F B A (1,877) (1,894)
Finance cost BhE R AR 2,117 2,241
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of land & b R R -
use rights and property, plant BEREE
and equipment FE1E () 7 (35,0083)
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB R
plant and equipment e 74,794 73,345
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b A B 66 =
Amortisation of land use rights - {5 PR R RO 8 1,234 1,335
Written off on property, plant Y - BB K&
and equipment it 89,931 =
Written off on inventories FEME 13,036 =
Equity-settled share-based AR (& AR D A EE
payment expenses Eof-gant 19,916 =
Share of results of FEIGEE & N RIS
an associate 105 -
Changes in fair value on financial BRAFEFAERZ
assets at fair value through TREENTE
profit or loss e (9,308) =
Impairment loss on property, VI - BB RERAE
plant and equipment A EE 316,841 -
Impairment loss on land use rights s PR AR (E 5 18 15,261 =
18,725 97,599
Changes in working capital BEESED
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®L,(3Em) 3,616 (1,590)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 FE W R IE K H b fE I
other receivables IR L, (38hn) 34,884 (3,967)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 FE 508 R H Ab e
HRIEE (90,451) (4,127)
Payment for purchase of financial BERATESGABRZ
assets at fair value through SRVEEMR
profit or loss (32,669) -
Cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (TR EENES
operations (65,895) 87,915
Income tax paid-The People’s BFTSH
Republic of China (the “PRC”) - PEARIEME ([HE]) (4,393) (17,149)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (FTR) TSRS FE
operating activities (70,288) 70,766
Investing activities RETE
Interest received 24 FILE 1,877 1,894
Net cash outflow from acquisition Weg—RK B A RRE
of a subsidiary T R R (16,774) -
Net cash outflow from formation B —HBERARRE
of an associate R (4,900) -
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME  BER&E
plant and equipment EOENES (435,477) (92,122)
Proceeds from disposal of land use HEIERERYE  BE
rights and property, plant and equipment KERABFR S 5E 85 76,489
Net cash used in investing activities BRETE AR S FRE (455,189) (13,739)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
72 N = EE%/}ILE%
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — R F+_-_B=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Financing activities mMEED
Interest paid BFLE (2,117) (2,241)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, BITH R (MR BEITHRA)
net of issuance costs FT1SXIA 69,294 =
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRITERAE IR 105,600 35,000
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITER (55,000) (15,000)
Net cash generated from RMETEMESRESFE
financing activities 117,777 17,759
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBREZEEY
and cash equivalents (R ), /1B hniFEE (407,700) 74,786
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HBHH®
at 1 January RERBREZEEY 555,247 480,461
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—HMERS
at 31 December RREZEEY 147,547 555,247
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBLEBYEHRI N
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—HHRE
at 31 December EREEEY 147,547 555,247

The notes on pages 60 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 March 2006 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies Law”)
and acts as an investment holding company. Its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 1 February 2007. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box
31119, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and Unit 1113, 11th Floor, North
Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong respectively. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are the development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of pharmaceutical products, sales of software and provision
of consultancy services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from the initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in an associate.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand except for per share data. RMB is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise set
out in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 4(b).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —Z— ~F+ -8 =

2.

HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(j))). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
and the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence in lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

TEESEBER (8)

d)

BE AT

B AR IS AE M A E
EEFEEALENNER B
12 RE RIS RSB RS ok
R A I EIRE -

VBt R AR E TR s AT
NEGRB®|E - BRIFEW DI
REFEHE - REBEERE  RE
VTR ANIR - AR B
AR A AR EEFEN W
B E R AR LR E A Z A
ZR(ME)EHRARE - 2 &
ARAKEIEREERREES
BEZWERES R EFMEGHRE
Z R AE B R (R E2()) 1F 7
B o (EUiE A SBER Az £
B AEBEREBRERARRIE
& 2RI KA R FERE
BENMREBERAER A
%Eﬁﬁ&é AR IR Z bR
B EMhEEKERBRFEEE
s R EMEERERER -

WA E G AR 2 B
BEEGERD - ANAREMRES
BRET @ WERIERE—F
18 - R PTANE 2 AR
EEESIRRBRHRERRENZ
AEERIN - Ut S - AEEZ
o Rk AT E 2R E R
B EREE AR S BN

M”TW&ﬁ”ﬁZ*lﬁ%%

=

SBEAEBERNRZHARHHME
EZARERBE  HRAKER
W&ﬁ B P71 B B 2 B KRR

AR EERREEEE
Fﬁﬁﬂ@ A2 S AE R EIE
SER NIRRT R -

HRE 2 AR ZREKBNE &
TENRE(RZITR)  REE
S NETAEHTE - RERM
EERERENR ©

RIFEEMIBERT - EXREED
BHBERRABEEEATED
H'Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁ LY

EEm AR - FTEE Hmsk
Eﬂaﬁ"?@ SR RERR o (EfIRRE
BAFBNEMPIRAENRRE
R 2 R N T B AR M ek & R
BERIFERASREEFHOR
FE -




2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

i)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
the control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2.

HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (that
is, the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

ii) Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(s)
(iv) and (ii).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)
Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the investment revaluation reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price
in an active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(j)). Dividend income from equity securities is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(s)(iv).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

values, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.33% or over the unexpired term
of lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-20%

equipment
Leasehold improvements  10%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Plant and machinery 10%-20%

For those impaired property, plant and equipment, including
buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment and plant and
equipment in one of the factories in Jianyang City, Fujian
Province, the PRC, not fully depreciated, depreciation is
provided based on book value after deducting impairment
provision over the estimated useful life.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties, plant and equipment are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for their intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Product development costs 5 years
Patents 5 years
Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.
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HIFFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Leased assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Leased assets (Continued)

i)

Leasehold land and building for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

j) Impairment of assets

i)

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESFEER (8)

j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associate accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(j)(ii).

- For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)}

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- land use rights;

- intangible assets;

- prepayments and deposits;

- goodwill;

- interests in an associate; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)] Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (that is, a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)}

Impairment of assets (Continued)

iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see note 2(j)(i) and

(iD).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

]

0)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2())(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are carried
at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

Employee benefits

i)

i)
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Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —Z—NF+ -8 =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

Employee benefits (Continued)
if) Share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.

iif) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination) and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

i)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities
are recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note 2(r)(ii). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

2(1)(i).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
r) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

if) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of an outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

s) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered which
is taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts
and returns.

ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

iif) Service income
Service income is recognised in profit or loss when the
services are delivered.

iv)  Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation if the
foreign operations were acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (that is, partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —-T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

V) Related parties
a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

i)

i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i)

i)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provide key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

82 Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

2. FEEIEEK
v) BEAL
a)

(%)

fHBIAT AL BlZAL

HZAN T EET I RRE
Bk B BB R

i)

i)

12 1) 2l L (R 42 ) A
&M

HALEEEAY

Z!KEI T ]
REIMEERER

JE'EJZE o
b) WA THMERGEE ED
ZERENEEFRHE
) ZEBRASEA
B—S£BHKER
EIQEIE=S SN
BRa &R RWB
AR AL HEEE) -
iy —HEBEARE—E®
BOBENFRE
EhE(XRE—E
BAKEBARIZE
BEETHERA Z
ﬁ)ﬁf&ﬁ?jé\%ﬁ

i)

Vi)

vii)

vii

o | 3§
Q& i 0D K8
- h—l,

7B o
F I MW

° 3t Y0 7R =8
Ii5E S e |11
PR

EIRE b

fiE >t i
& R

< m Ry
7
S 0 3t B

2 50

i 7
o BN,

F
o
&
]
H
ﬂt

it
file

k
H- XK

=
P=112

Bt
=X}
I

N

X B
FEHIA
RIFEH -

RHEEE @)>) FTssI A
THZEBEEA
HESBZEB (K
ax;ﬁ“ﬂ’]! CIDES
ZEBERKE -

‘X%Z?‘-:E%Fﬁ
B ERI B B
n %R B3
BRrRTEES
ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ%

‘%lJ‘JZﬁ

:H@?E’E

i e > B R
Hm!J%W)W¢}

—BAT AR ATERTEEEH
BERIGHAIFEZALHZZ
ATHEZKEKE °




2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —Z—NF+ -8 =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s chief executive officer, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception for the first time in the current year. The amendments clarify
that the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements
is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at
fair value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The amendments also
clarify that the requirement for an investment entity to consolidate a
subsidiary, whose main purpose is to provide services and activities
that are related to the investment activities of the investment entity
parent, applies only to subsidiaries that are not investment entities
themselves.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
an investment entity and does not have any holding company,
subsidiary, associate or joint venture that qualifies as an investment
entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —-T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant
principles on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and
other standards (for example, HKAS 12 Income Taxes regarding the
recognition of deferred taxes at the time of acquisition and HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash-
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation
has been allocated) should be applied. The same requirements
should be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and only if an
existing business is contributed to the joint operation by one of the
parties that participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant information
required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for business combinations.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have
any such transactions in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure
required by an HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure
is not material, and give guidance on the bases of aggregating and
disaggregating information. However, the amendments reiterate
that an entity should consider providing additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient
to enable users of financial statements to understand the impact of
particular transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method should be presented separately from
those arising from the Group, and should be separated into the
share of items that, in accordance with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments
provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping of the notes.

The application of these amendments has not resulted in any impact
on the financial performance or financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —Z—NF+ -8 =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant and
equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce
a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis
for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

In addition, the amendments also clarify that in choosing an
appropriate amortisation method an entity could determine the
predominant limiting factor that is inherent in the intangible asset.

As the Group already uses the straight-line method for depreciation
and amortisation for its property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets respectively, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS
41 Agriculture define a bearer plant and require biological assets that
meet the definition of a bearer plant to be accounted for as property,
plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS
41. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
engaged in agricultural activities.
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3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Group has applied the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle for the first time in the current year which include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs as summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify when an entity reclassifies an
asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution
to owners (or vice versa), such a change should be considered as a
continuation of the original plan of disposal and hence requirements
set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
The amendments also clarify the guidance for when held-for-
distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify
whether a servicing contract constitutes continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in
relation to transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used to discount
post-employment benefit obligations should be determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds. The assessment of the depth of a market for
high quality corporate bonds should be at the currency level (that is,
the same currency as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for
which there is no deep market in such high quality corporate bonds,
the market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The application of these amendments has had no material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

i)

i)

i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. The estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives. It will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and therefore affect the
depreciation charges in future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgment is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The fair value of options granted is estimated by
management based on various assumptions on volatility,
life of options, dividend paid out rate and annual risk-free
interest rate, which generally represent the best estimate
of the fair value of share options at the date of grant.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (Continued)

iv)  Fair value of contingent consideration payables
The fair value of contingent consideration payables was
determined by using a valuation technique. The Group
uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the expected volatility
and risk free rate, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumption used could materially affect
the fair value of the balance and as a result affect the
Group’s financial condition and results of operation.

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

i) Impairment of intangible assets

The policy for impairment of intangible assets of the
Group is based on an evaluation of their recoverable
amount with reference to expected future cash flows
based on management’s estimation. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in estimating
the expected future cash flows from the Group’s
pharmaceutical products under development and
software. If the recoverable amounts are less or
more than expected than the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets, or changes in facts and circumstances
which may result in revisions of the estimated future cash
flows, impairment or reversal of impairment loss may be
required.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2016 was RMB3,918,000 (2015: Nil) (see
note 18).

ii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights
Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of value
in use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

During the year, impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment and land use rights recognised in profit
or loss amounted to approximately RMB316,841,000
(2015: RMB Nil) and RMB15,261,000 (2015: RMB Nil)
respectively.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights as at 31 December 2016 were
RMB750,373,000 (2015: RMB796,531,000 (see note
16) and RMB36,137,000 (2015: RMB52,632,000) (see
note 17) respectively.

Estimated impairment of receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or being revised
downward due to changes on facts and circumstances,
a material impairment loss may arise.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

i)

iv)

v)

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

Estimated impairment of receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
receivables was RMB112,042,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMBNIl) (2015: RMB141,992,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMBNil) (see note 23).

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sales. The Group writes down slow-moving
or obsolete inventories based on an assessment of the
net realisable value of the inventories. Write-down of
inventories will be made where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is
less than cost. The determination of net realisable value
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the
inventories and the amount of inventory written down in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of inventories was RMB14,133,000 (2015:
RMB30,785,000) (see note 22).

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
upon acquisition

In connection with the acquisition of a subsidiary, the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were adjusted
to their estimated fair values on the date of acquisition.
The determination of the values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed involves management’s judgements
and assumptions. The values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed were based on valuation report
from independent professional qualified valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
were subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. Any change in such judgements
and assumptions would affect the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

vi)

vii)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(e)(ii). The recoverable amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit has been
determined based on its value in use. These calculations
require the use of estimates. There are a number of
assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget and the estimated terminal value. Key
assumptions include the expected gross margin, growth
rates and selection of discount rates, to reflect the risks
involved and the earnings multiple that can be realised
for the estimated terminal value. Management prepared
the financial budgets reflecting actual performance
and market development expectations. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions adopted in the
cash flow projections and changes to key assumptions
can significantly affect these cash flow projections and
therefore the result of the impairment reviews.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
goodwill was RMB107,055,000 (2015: Nil) (see note 19).

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. In assessing the amount of deferred
income tax assets that need to be recognised, the Group
considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the
Group’s estimates of projected future taxable income
and benefits from available tax strategies are changed,
adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred
income tax assets and income tax expense would be
made.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets was RMB169,736,000 (2015:
RMB64,478,000) (see note 28(b)).
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

viii)

Withholding tax on the distributable profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement became
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

The Group has made provision for withholding tax on
dividends expected to be remitted from group entities
incorporated in the PRC based on the Group’s general
dividend policy for the net profits generated by the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries after 1 January 2008. The
Group provided withholding tax for such undistributed
profits as deferred tax liabilities. The directors of the
Company will regularly review the dividend distribution
policy of its subsidiaries from time to time.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax
on distributable profits was RMB12,740,000 (2015:
RMB14,622,000) (see note 28(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk arising from financial
instruments. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

a)

Currency risk

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the directors monitor its foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risks arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to these
risks are primarily United States Dollars (“USD”) and
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”). For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rates at the end of the reporting
period.
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Exposure to foreign currency (expressed in RMB’000)

SRR (LARB T THIE)

2016 2015
—E-RE —RfF
usD HKD usb HKD
EY BT Y BT
Cash and cash equivalents REeRAEZEY 7 39,669 6 1,620
Accrued charges i ER - (2,080) (1,157)
Other payables H i FIB - (611) = (33)
Contingent consideration ERHARE
payable - (44,643) - -
Net exposure arising from ERRAEERERE
recognised assets EEMRERFE
and liabilities 7 (7,665) 6 430
Sensitivity analysis (i) BREZH

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax (and (accumulated
losses)/retained profits) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the United States dollar
against other currencies.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. BH¥RAREEREBMIAENTE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
a) Currency risk (Continued) a) = ))
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i)  BHBRELH(E)
2016 2015
“E-RE —Z-0fF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange retained
rates losses rates profits
HERHRER HRBEER
SNEEZ S EGT ] SMERE % RRE &
#n/ (Ed) a7 ) VAC: ) Pl 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
HKD ou 5% 383 5% 22
(5%) (383) (5%) (22
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table FREE SIS RIERS

represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the group entities’ loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

In the opinion of the directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. FHEREEREMIEAFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%&)

b)

Interest rate risk

b) F=EE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risks in relation
to variable-rate cash and cash equivalents (note 25) and fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings
(note 27). The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks. However,
the management of the Group will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arises.

AEEHRABTIERERAS
B (fiE25) WR B X
R RARESRITEENRT
ENERER (FE27) - AEEE
AR A (B EFINTER LE A
KRy AT EEFTE A%
BB E 5 R AR R AL
P -

i) Interest rate profile i) FIEFHE
The following details the interest rate profile of the LTARREHARARNER
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and borrowing at the NS MBS EEY RE
end of the reporting period: B FIRFS
2016 2015
—E-NEF “T-1F
Range of Range of
interest Interest
rates rates
FlZ=EE FI=EE
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Variable rate deposits: FEEN
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHAEEEY 0.01%-0.35% 107,926 0.01%-0.35% 553,871
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER
Secured bank loans BERBTER 4.57%-4.79% 85,600  5.00%-6.44% 35,000

if) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
by approximately RMB810,000 (2015: increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB4,154,000). For a general decrease
of 100 basis profits in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the (loss)/profit after tax and the
(accumulated losses)/retained profits.

i) BBEDT
AT S8 E DT E R&Z A
RRREHREAEF
g YEEAERZA
FHREZIFTESMT AR
RS 7 MR E R o

R-_ZFE—RNF+ = A8
=+—H8 " WAELEH
FH100MEE 28 B Fr A E ftb
AEMEFIE  NEBR
ReEERkETBERRD
HAR#ES10,000 T (=&
—RF  AEERFEE
FI RAR B S FIE A AR
i'P%M,154,0007z) o fin Fl &=
A 100EE 2 B ATH
Eﬁﬂl%f@%?““ Al
HkFi%& (BEB), S8R
(REHE18) MREHFE
EREERARMEZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—ZE—A"F+-_A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. BREREERE/M I AENFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
b) Interest rate risk (Continued) b) FIEER ()
ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) ii) BURE 7T (48)
The 100 basis points increase/decrease represents 100 E 20 EF R 4

management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of
the next reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2015.

c) Credit risk c) 8
i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will i)
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of
only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

ii) The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade ii)
receivables, other receivables and amount due from
an associate. In order to minimise the credit risks,
the management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from its debtors.

iii) In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group if)

has concentration of credit risk as 76% (2015: 99%)
of the balances are placed in two (2015: two) financial
institutions located in the PRC. The Group controls its
credit risk on bank balances through regularly review
of their credit rating. Cash held by financial institution
represented amounts deposited in a financial institution
in Hong Kong. Given the high credit rating, management
does not expect the financial institution will fail to meet its
obligations.

iv) In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group’s iv)
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each debtor. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group had a concentration risk
as 80% (2015: Nil) of the total loans and receivables was
due from an associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. UXKEREEREMIEANFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

Credit risk (Continued) c) fEERRE(E)

v)  In respect of amount due from an associate, credit v) BLEWEEE R FRIEM
evaluations of the associate’s financial position and s EHEEQRTNEGG
condition are performed. The Group reviews the MR RIEHETEERFT
recoverable amount of the amount due at the end of the flf o REBE R HENBRE
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment HASK B A 2 m] U [o] ZOE -
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. LAREAR Bh 1 AT Yz [8] 2 5K I8

e 72 2 REESE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s BREAEBFERE S EWIE

exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables Ko HoAh JE W SR IR 2E A S B R R

are set out in note 23. 2 EEHWBEHNKIES o

Liquidity risk d ARBESER

To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains EEERHESERBE  KEH

a level of cash and cash equivalents considered adequate ERRRBEERABTHNRS

by the directors to finance the Group’s operations and LIRS EEBMEE  LLAKER

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The HEKLSBEREESTRBIRE

Group held cash and cash equivalents amounting to MERBNTE - RZT—RF

approximately RMB147,547,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: +=—A=1+—8 XEEHBEZ

RMB555,247,000). ReRRAEEBUWARARE

147,547,000 (= —FF : A
R " 555,247,0007T) °

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRAMAEBERRERARES

maturities at the end of the reporting period for its financial BMEEIZHRTANIEA - %X

liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on contractual RS MABEANRUBEERSR

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and based on the EREERR - WiHALEBEA]4E
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The WERMNTNZEAESEXE -

tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ZRBIENERASRERE °

Carrying

Weighted More than ~ More than amount at
average 1 year 2 years Total  the end of
effective Within but less but less undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1year than2years than5years cash flows period
MR 1E0E 2ENE AWBRE  REEER
EWNF= 1E0R BN B5EMA RELE  MEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI ARETrn ARETr AR%Tr AR%Txn

2016 “E-RE

Trade payables EHEMNTE Nil 22 - - 22 22

i1

Other payables AR Nil 49,220 - - 49,200 49,220

i1

Secured bank loans FERBRITER 4.6% 1,975 86,869 - 88,844 85,600

51,217 86,869 - 138,086 134,842

2015 “Z-1f

Trade payables EHEME Nil 55,131 - - 55,131 55,131

i
Other payables EfuEr3oE Nil 17,991 - - 17,991 17,991
.
Secured bank loans FERRITER 5.8% 35,733 - - 35,733 35,000
108,355 - - 108,855 108,122

HREBEZERDE o« —F—RFEER

==
=

97



98

Notes to the Financial Statements

A TS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — "F+_-_A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. UHEREEREMIAEATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
e)  Equity price risk e) RERR
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from RNEBBEAESEARAFEST
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value ANERmzeREECREREE
through profit or loss. AR EZEE R o
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock AEBR EMKERB AT
Exchange and are components of the Hang Seng Index (the e WAEERS(EHS]) 2—
“Index”). Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based D  BAKBLEEESR IR
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual securities B HERERFES 2 RR (EIEH
compared to that of the Index and other industry indicators, as REMITEIEZELER) U RARER
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. HRBDESHRE  MIELEER
=
At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that an increase/ R_E—RF+=-_A=+—H"
(decrease) of 10% (2015: Nil) in the relevant stock market index REBE M BEEHMESTE - h5t48
with all other variables held constant would have (decreased)/ RARR TS &L AN (CFi4) 10% (=
increased the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) T—hHF: T) FAEENKRTIE
and other components of consolidated equity as follows: B (R RFEER) MrbEsH
b AR 15 G A>) AT
2016 2015
—E-RF —Z-nf
Effect on Effect on
loss after Effect on profit after Effect on
tax and other tax and other
accumulated  components retained components
losses of equity profits of equity
HRB % HiraER HERH% HgakR
FiERZTEE HAAR A RRE Hib K
258 ibawd7% B2 iFara-Z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETTL AREFTT
Change in the RABREBEH
relevant equity Z2E
price risk variable:
Increase i 10% (3,505) - - -
Decrease -0 10% 3,505 - - -
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in BRESNET  BREBRMIEE

Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index.

Sk EL A AR B b B B EE B
WEHREL - WERARERN
AEAKEMFAZERTA
MzE TASAERNFERR
BAESBEANERRR - HAKE
ZBHEEER (REFER) ki
B E M AN K& B B
P TERIAKERANRE
ZAVEMREERMIESZE
KAEERIEMES
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e)

Equity price risk (Continued)

i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — "F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. REREEFReEm T EANTE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
f) Fair value measurement f) AF{ETTE

Fair value at
31 December

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into

100

Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

2016 RZZE-—XRE+=ZA=+—H
R-ZT—RF PERELUTHAZAFE
+=A=+—H” Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZD¥E E— B E=HK
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TRT AR%®T:R
Recurring fair value BEENEERSE
measurements
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair BRAFES AR
value through profit ZEmEE
or loss 41,977 41,977 - -
Liabilities: afE:
Contingent consideration  FEF e AR(E
payable 44,643 - - 44,643
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2015 categorised into
2015 R-E—HF+-A=+—H
R-ZE—HF PEEUTHBNZDFE
+=BA=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZAYE £ EZR E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT ARETT AREFTRT ARETT
Recurring fair value BEENFESE
measurements
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair BAFER ARG
value through profit ZEMEE

or loss

During the years ended 31 December 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that
the Group could be required to make under this arrange is
between RMBO and RMB44,643,000.

The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement
is RMB44,643,000 was estimated by applying the income
approach and based on the valuation performed by an
independent professional qualified valuer. The fair value
estimates are based on assumed profit of Fujian Liumai Medical
Services Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Liumai”) of RMB8,000,000. This is a
level 3 fair value measurement. The key unobservable inputs of
the valuation were: (i) expected volatility of 53.7%; (ii) risk free
rate of 3.21% and the estimated profits of Fujian Liumai.

BE_Z—XRFT-_A=t+—H
FFE  F—REE—RzBL
BER TEEARELF=
o AEEZBRB/NATERE
2 B EEB ARG ARER
BEREE -

REBBERBEU ZH e 25D
AR FEBERT RSN T
/_\Eﬁgzﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁg44,643,000
5T o

KARARELZHEZATFEARE
44,643,000 70 T3 & A U8 AR &
BIEB Y A ERGEMETT
REEm - o ZAFEMEE TS
ERNEEANREEREERAR
(MMBENIK]) 2 BEHFARE
8,000,0007T ° LTy BE=HATF
Bif 2 HEZETETAEBERS
ASIEA () TERRKIE53.7% ¢ (i)
18 LR K & 3.21% R AR IE N IR 2
(R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
The movements during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair
value measurements are as follows:

At beginning of year

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 35)

Total gains recognised
in the statement of
profit or loss

At end of year

FH)

W iE— R B A Al
(Mf7£35)

RIES R P HERK
Rl g

FR

The major unobservable input to the valuation is the expected
volatility. A slight increase in the expected volatility used
in isolation would result in an increase in the fair value

measurement.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other

than fair value

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively.

6. FBEAREEREMIAATE
(%)

N ATEHE
BNEE= KA TEET BES

FREEIT ¢
2016 2015
—E—XEF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFIT
44,643 -
44,643 -

HEZ EBFTBERARES
T 08 - 7 PO T4 O O
IS E T AT R0 -

g BAFEUMNIRZSEEER
SREECATE
ARBEERA  AKESHT
EL ) B T {8 2 A A Bk 8§ AR AR 5
R BER-ZT—REFE=T—H
F+-—A=+—HBZRAFELE
BEAER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —

7.
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Ad

NETZA=+—HIEFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the internal
reports reviewed by the Group’s chief executive officer, being the
chief operating decision maker, that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group manages its businesses by business lines which
comprises the development, manufacturing, marketing and sales
of pharmaceutical products, sales of software and provision of
consultancy services. The chief operating decision maker reviews the
Group’s business as a whole for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Group has only
one reportable segment and, therefore, there is no presentation of
operating segment information. In addition, as the Group’s revenue
from external customers and the majority of the non-current assets
of the Group are located in the PRC for both years, no geographical
information is presented.

During 2016 and 2015, no revenue from transactions with a single
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the development,
manufacturing, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products,
sales of software and provision of consultancy services.

Revenue includes the net invoiced value of goods sold and services

rendered by the Group. The amounts of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year are as follows:

Sales of pharmaceutical products 5% %5,
Provision of consultancy services 2t ER RS

OTHER INCOME

SRITHBUA

Bank interest income

WIFR A FER AR
ZEREEMM B AR

Total interest income on financial
assets not at fair value through
profit or loss

Exchange gain, net BEE 34, Wb o 5

Changes in fair value on financial & A F{EF ABZE
assets at fair value through L ERMEENTELZY
profit or loss

Sundry income IR A

AEBREAEBTHRER (EFZE
REN) RIERKEAMBHOA MRS E
EEEBIME -

}

REBREBE N EREER LA
ETBEERME  2UE - MHHEERER
HEREERT MR HEARRY - 5%
BERRAEHAEBWERER, AU
ﬁ)ﬁ@ﬂﬁ&?ﬁﬁi%iﬁ o FiE - AKE(E
B EARBO]R - B W2 HEME
BORER - Jttﬁl\' AR A E R E
FRIRBINVEP 2 Wz R IER
PEEMNPE - RWEZIEBE

R-E—RER-_T—h%F HEES
—INFBRPHEITZ R B U EIEANE @4
URZE 10% sk A E »

REBMTEXBAEMFAE  SE
IS HE RS I 85 6 DA T $H &5 S IH R 4 EﬁFﬁ
BR7S °

Wt BIEAKEHENE R RERHOR
BEERFE - NFEARBHZEANSR
Az W2 SEI

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
262,742 555,652
283 -
263,025 555,652
=gl
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
1,877 1,894
1,877 1,894
2,984 84
9,308 -
27 —
14,196 1,978




10.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@)

(o)

(c)

Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
Staff costs

Directors’ and chief executive
officer's emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Contributions to defined
contribution retirement
plans
— Salaries, wages and other
benefits

Total staff costs **
Other items

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment *# (note 16)
Amortisation of other intangible
assets (note 18)
Amortisation of land use rights
(note 17)
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Other service
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses (note 30)
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (note 16)
Impairment loss on land use rights
(note 17)
Written off on property, plant and
equipment (note 16)
Written off on inventories (note 22)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment (note 16)
Operating lease payments in
respect of rented premises
Cost of inventories * (note 22)
Research and development costs *

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
10. BRBiERT (&18), 57
BEIERT (B51R), HFE MR (GEA)
ATEIA :
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
ME AR
RITEEF S 2,117 2,241
BIRA
EZRITRAEHMN
(BfaE11) 2,926 3,391
Hih 8 THRA
— EEEFURREEIER
4,143 6,729
—Hé  TEREMER
26,106 44,242
B T 33,175 54,362
HitEH
ME  BERSEITE
(MizE16) 74,794 73,345
H T A 5
(KtzE18) 66 =
o b {55 P A i
(HIzE17) 1,234 1,335
ZEEE <
—BE R 1,412 830
— H AR 180 146
AR EE AR AR
R (FiFEE30) 19,916 =
WE - BEREERERE
(KizE16) 316,841 =
T AR EEE
(BM=E17) 15,261 =
¥ BB RS EME
(MizE16) 89,931 =
TFEMHE (ME22) 13,036 =
HE T FERAERDE - BER
REZFER/(KE)
(KMizE16) 7 (35,003)
PREEMELFHEERHER
1,025 1,344
FEMA (MiE22) 244,906 436,045
TR 4,135 4,550

B IE AR MIEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — "F+_-_A=+—HILFE
10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 10. BHEAR (BE) GEF (&)

# Cost of inventories includes RMB76,401,000 (2015: RMB79,891,000) relating # FEXRABIERE TR ARTESEN
to staff costs and depreciation which amount is also included in the respective AR#76,401,000 T (ZZF—FHF : HA
total amounts disclosed separately above. R¥79,891,0007T) + ZEEMBIER L

XEERENSERARDE -

* Research and development costs includes RMB3,972,000 (2015: * MEKABEABE IRARTEAR
RMB4,524,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation which amount is also #3,972,000t( —Z T —HF: AR
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above. 4,524,0007T) * ZELBEINBIER EXE

BRBENSEEREDEE -
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 1. EBRITBAEEGH

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the BIEEB D RIEHISE383(1) B A E] (B

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EEEH /u%ﬁiﬁﬁ) EHE—ROIBEZ

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and EEHINRITHARE S NES AT

the chief executive officer’'s emoluments are as follows:

2016 2015
ZE-5E “5-1f
Contributions Contributions
to defined to defined
Salaries, contribution Salaries, ~ contribution
allowances retirement allowances  retirement
and other plans and other plans
benefits R benefts  FEMH
Fees H&EER &I Total Fees HeREER BIR Total
#e  HtER  HENER a5 we  EMEH  EOER ]
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTn  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR
Executive directors #1782
Lin Ou Wen HENX
(Chief executive officer) (1) 1,001 244 53 1,208 949 305 53 1307

Lin Qing Ping (note ) WET (Mia) 470 1 37 679 632 305 53 990

Xu Chao Hui (note b) TR (Wito) 8 76 17 176 190 233 H 464

Lin Min (note ¢} i (Fizkc) 100 122 2% 248

Non-executive directors iy

Tang Bin (note d) B (Wikd) 56 - - 56 126 - - 126

John Yang Wang (note ¢) 15 (e 67 - - 67 126 = = 126

Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming (noteh) (&4 (FizEh) - - - - - - - -

Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors

Liu Jun (note ) L EIGRD) 67 - - 67 126 - = 126

Lam Yat Cheong (note f) HAE (Hf) 67 - - 67 126 - = 126

Du Jian (note f) HE (K 67 - - 67 126 - = 126

Zhang Jie (note g K5 (Ffikg) 67 - - 67 - - = -

Zhang Xue Wen (note g) FEX (fitg) 67 - - 67 = = = =

Wu Cheng Han (note g} KA (Hitg) 67 - - 67 - - - -

2179 614 133 2,926 2,401 843 147 3,391

Note BsE

a) Mr. Lin Qing Ping retired as executive director on 2 June 2016, appointed on 30 a) MEFELE —RNENAZHREHIT

June 2016 and resigned on 14 October 2016. i EQ gé\ﬁié—'— BEZEEER

b)  Mr. Xu Chao Hui resigned as executive director on 2 June 2016.
c) Mr Lin Min was appointed as executive director on 30 June 2016 and resigned
on 17 February 2017.

d) Mr. Tang Bin resigned as non-executive director on 2 June 2016.
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12.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —-ZT—F+_-A=

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 11.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

e) Mr. John Yang Wang resigned as non-executive director on 30 June 2016.

f)  Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Lam Yat Cheong and Mr. Du Jian resigned as independent non-
executive director on 30 June 2016.

g) Mr. Zhang Jie, Mr. Zhang Xue Wen and Mr. Wu Cheng Han were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on 30 June 2016.

h)  Mr. Wen Cyrus Jun-Ming was appointed as non-executive director on 15 June
2015 and resigned on 3 March 2016.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and
chief executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year. None of
the directors and chief executive officer has waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 12.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining two (2015:
two) individuals were as follows:

Rt 5 R 2R Y

t—BIEFE

EERITERARTMH (R)

GERRCD

o EBAEN-FT-AENA=TEREIER
ES -

N BELAE - MASLERMBEER
O aieme wnas-

9 REEE  REXLERIRRHEEN-T
o TAASTHARERRIINTE

h BEERBEEN_Z-RFATHARE
§3E$R?7§$&EQ:§—/‘T$EHE H

REA - AEEBERERZES RITE
BEINEMMNES  EREMNALRE
liﬁﬁﬂﬂ)\zﬁglﬁﬂﬁ’lﬁﬁbi%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
B -REBEE_T—XRFR-_T—A1F
+ZA=+— Eiﬁf BEEERIT
RABHBEE IS -

£
&

FrekHEmme
FERR SR IRE SIS R

Salaries and other emoluments
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

ReEHALT
EEREFATHR  =R(ZT—RF:
ZHR)ARAREE  HEZHEHE
RHFE1 - R TIMB(ZE—RF : W
Z)ATHB S @ERELT
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFIT
1,249 1,212
49 55
1,298 1,267
ME(ZZ—RAF  MB)BRag AL

B F TR

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E-hF
Emoluments band B <& E
Nil-HK$1,000,000 (approximately ~ ZZ 1,000,000 7T
equivalent to RMB855,000 (HEM AR 855,000 7T
(2015: RMB804,000)) —HF : AR¥804,0007T)) 1 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7L E 1,500,000 %8 7T
(approximately equivalent to (HER ARE1,283,0007T)
RMB1,283,000) (ZZ—AF : AR¥1,215,0007T)
(2015: RMB1,215,000) 1 =
2 2

No emoluments was paid by the Group to the above individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as for loss of
office during the year. None of the above individuals has waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

RER » ARERES IS T L
WAL - EBEMARERREEMA
REER R RE) R BRI E - NEE—
B XER-E-—AE+—A=+—H
IFE - B DR AT HEEAME -

RREBEZEFRLT « —E—RFFERSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — "F+_-_A=+—HILFE
13. INCOME TAX 13. FrfEH
a) Income tax (credit)/expense recognised in profit or loss a) REZRABERZMEH(K
%)/ %
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Current tax EHTIE
PRC Enterprise Income B EEE
Tax (“EIT”) (TREFPEE ) - 19,546
Over-provision in respect WEFEBERE
of prior years - (1,250)
Deferred taxation EERIE (107,140) (1,924)
(107,140) 16,372

b)

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, one of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, Fujian Liumai,
is exempted form PRC EIT for two years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three
years ended 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2020. For
other PRC subsidiaries of the Group, PRC EIT is calculated
at 25% (2015: 25%) in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax have been made as the
Group had no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates

REFEBREERER  AEEHE
F—HHBERBAR BENK F
BHE_ZT—RER-ZF—tF+=A
=t+—HUIEMBEFECEMEHE2ER
BE_ZEZ—N\E+_-_A=+—HZ=-Z
TEFE+ A=+ R IERE=(EAEE
R EFTEBUR UM TRISER - LA
E@EEMPEMBARMS @ PELE
FRSEL TR IR R BAB B AR VA 1R 25%
—E—RF :25%)51E -

HRAEERBE—_Z—RF+_H
=t+— AL FREERB L EIRERSR
WM (ZF—AF : &) HUEREE
S TVEH R -

b) RERAREFENBAMIES
5t (E518), (aFIE IR T -

(Loss)/profit before tax BT (B1R) /%A
Notional tax on (loss)/profit ZHARRERTE
before tax, calculated at BRI (B1B), 5
the rates applicable in the B E&ENIE
countries concerned
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  FAIHIHE A RFIIG 5 2
Tax effect of non-taxable income R M s &
Over-provision in respect BEFERERE

of prior years
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised
Tax effect of share of profit

AERHEBBRZRGZE

FEIE = R B MR R

less loss of an associate e e

Effect of withholding tax on AEEHEHE AR
the distributable profits DRz BHR T2
of the Group’s PRC (PiizE28(b)(i))
subsidiaries (note 28(b)(i)

Actual tax (credit)/expense ERFE(KR) /X
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2016 2015
—-XE 3%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
(503,398) 57,575
(123,965) 13,038
20,471 5,042
(18,735) -

- (1,250)

16,945 -

26 -

(1,882) (458)
(107,140) 16,372
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB396,258,000 (2015: profit of approximately
RMB41,203,000) and the weighted average of 1,983,786,200
ordinary shares (2015: 1,716,331,400 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

(Loss)/profit attributable RAREER AFEM (E518)
to owners of the s F ()
Company (basic)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)

Weighted average number  FLEFRREAZFIM =
of ordinary shares for B 3B AR DN S35 24
the purpose of basic
earnings per share

b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented
as the impact of the share options had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share amounts presented. Therefore,
the calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB396,258,000
and the weighted average number of 1,9883,786,200 ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, diluted earnings per
share equals basic earnings per share as there is no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding.

14.

158

Rt 5 R 2R Y

BHE_Z—RET_A=1T—HILFE
e

ARRIESERTHEE_T—RER
“E-AF+-A=+—HILMEFE
IR RERE,

B (B518),BF

a) SBREANGERE)BA
BREX(EE), BN TREF
NARNRHER ABREBBEOAR
# 306,258,000 L ( —Z — A F :
i 49 A R ¥ 41,203,000 7T ) JA
N B 217 I F15 1,083,786,200

BREBR ZT — A F
1,716,331,400 i E 3@ AR ) 5+ &
FTEWT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
(396,258) 41,203

EBAINRE T I9 8 (BA)

2016 2015
—REF —ZT—RF
’000 '000

T’ T
1,983,786 1,716,331

b) EREE(SE) BT
HE_T—"F+-_A=+—H
IEFE - ARBERELTRER
ERIESHARERETYE
A R B R EREIETESHE
EH AR - At - BREREE
BREIDBBFARRARIES AR
1 &5 18 A K ¥ 396,258,000 7T JA
KB #1THEF191,983,786,200 %
TRRGETHE -

BE_Z-ASt+-A=+—H
LLFE - AREED R1THEEE
EERE  REREERNER
FIEARZF

HREBEZERDE o« —F—RFEER

@

==
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold  equipment
improvement KA Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings BE METEER  vehicls  machinery in progress Total
BF  DERE B e BERER ERIE FeE)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1f-f-A 248,056 - 49,420 7,892 942,982 4,600 1,252,950
Additions "E 400 269 202 = 89,651 3,100 93,622
Transfer o 7,700 - - - - (7,700) -
Disposals e (35,900) = (5,491) - (26,089 - (67.480)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+ZA=1—H
and 1 January 2016 k=E-7E-A-H 220,256 269 44,131 7,892 1,006,544 - 1,279,092
Additions AE = = 3 = 435,474 = 435,477
Disposal HE - - - (2,446) - - (2,446)
Acquisitions through business  BBEHA GFUEE (Fi5E35)
combination (note 35) - - 23 - - - 23
Written off (note d) g (M) (10,730) - - - (115200 - (125930)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-~§+ZA=1+-A 209,526 269 44,157 5,446 1,326,818 - 1,586,216
Accumulated depreciation ~ EFHTERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-hF—-A—H 50,406 - 42,996 6,926 339,675 281 440,284
Charge for the year FRREE 6,375 33 721 199 66,011 - 73,345
Transfer b 281 = = = = (281) =
Eliminated on HEBERHH
disposals of assets (8,327) - (4,082) - (18,709) - (31,068)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+=A=1—A
and 1 January 2016 R=Z—7E-A-H 48,735 33 39,691 7,125 386,977 - 482,561
Charge for the year ERFI 5,506 170 532 168 68,328 = 74,794
Impairment losses recognised  FMEZ R HERKT R ERFE
in profit or loss (note €) (WizEe) 46,258 - 1,155 - 269428 - 316841
Eliminated on disposals HEEEREH
of assets - - - (2,354) - - (2,354)
Written off (note d) 38 (FzEa) (772) - - - (35227) - (35999
At 31 December 2016 WZZ—"$+tZA=t-H 99,817 203 41,378 4,939 689,506 - 835,843
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2016 WZE—$+tZA=+-H 109,709 66 2,779 507 637,312 - 750,373
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-R%t-A=+-H 171,521 236 4,440 767 619,567 - 796,531
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

a)

As at 31 December 2016, the approval for applications of house ownership
certificates for buildings of the Group with a total carrying amount of
RMB109,709,000 (2015: RMB171,521,000) were still in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has disposed property,
plant and equipment and land use rights with total carrying amounts of
approximately RMB92,000 (2015: RMB36,412,000) and RMBNil (2015:
RMB5,074,000) (see note 17) respectively, resulting in a net loss on disposal
of approximately RMB7,000 (2015: net gain on disposal of approximately
RMB35,003,000).

At 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment with a net book value
of approximately RMB138,834,000 (2015: RMB53,130,000) was pledged
to a bank as collateral against the bank loans of RMB85,600,000 (2015:
RMB35,000,000) (note 27).

On 10 September 2016 and 8 November 2016, the operations of all the
production compartments in the Group’s production plant located in the
Haixi Industrial and Trading Development Zone in Jianyang City, Fujian
Province, China (the “Haixi Plant”) have been temporarily suspended (the
“Suspension”) due to typhoon Meranti and rupture of the main underground
steam pipelines connecting all the production compartments. These incidents
have caused damage to the production facilities. The Group therefore written
off property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB89,931,000.

Impairment loss

During the year ended 31 December 2016, as a result of the drop in sales
demand, suspension of production due to the upgrading and enhancement of
existing production equipment for new GMP certification and the continuously
deepening of the pharmaceutical system reform in China, the Group has
experienced significant drop in revenue and gross profit during the period. The
management of the Group therefore performed an impairment review of the
recoverable amount related to the Haixi Plant. For the purposes of impairment
testing of the Haixi Plant, property, plant and equipment and land use rights
located at the Haixi Plant was allocated to one cash generating unit (‘CGU”)
of sales of pharmaceutical products.

The recoverable amount of the relevant cash-generating unit of approximately
RMB786,398,000 was determined on the basis of value in use calculations.
Value in use calculations was based on the discount rate of 13.5% and
cash flow projections prepared from financial forecasts approved by the
management for the next five years. The cash-generating unit cash flows
beyond the 5-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales and expected gross
margins during the budget period which had been determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market development.

In performing the impairment testing, the directors of the Company had also
made reference to a valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer, APAC Assets Valuation and Consulting Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment losses of
RMB316,841,000 and RMB15,261,000 have been recognised in property,
plant and equipment and land use rights respectively.

M= ~ BB K&k (E)
P

a) R-T—RNE+-A=+—0 ~&EH
M E A A R%109,709,0007t( = &
—F4F : AR¥171,521,00078) ZIEF
EEAEERBEFIE -

b) REBEE-_ZT—R"F+_A=+—HIF
B AEECHERELEESINA
ARBEQRO0T(ZZE—HF: AR
36,412,000 T) RARBZ (=T —RF :
5,074,0007T) (MizE17) W% ~ BB K&
BREAR M FEAE EELERER
HAREET7000T(ZE—FF : HEWK
##935,003,0007T) °

) R-ZE—XNE+-A=1+—8 " %
B & ARK138,834,0007T( =B —F4E :
AR ¥53,130,00070) K ¥ % - BB K&
BB 1EA AR 85,600,000 =2 —H
£+ AR%35,000,000) 7T K $R1TE K
HIRYIEAR T IRAT (I 27) ©

d) RZB-—REAATAR=_F—RF
T—ANR AREARETREBESE
EEMETEERR  AEEUNTERE
BEARBMEATERERNEER
FEBARE)SEEEREFELE
(TFE)D - ZEFHEHEERBENK
B - AEEE I HIEREEOARE
89,931,000 T2 W% - BFE K&K

e) REEE

HE-_ZT—XEF+-A=+—HI#F
B AREERRTR - REUSHH 5
MAEEEEERRABEENHRELEE
BREETHARRREAMEIEEENARFR
B AR R BRI - ARENE
A2 Wi R EFIRBRER - NEEER
[ %1 826 75 R 5= /5 B /0 AT UR ] & B/ I
REBE - 38 ME 2R E /&M
URNEABEZYE  BERRE
AR+ AEE S BRAE —BIEARN
EREEQNBSES BN -

HRRSELE KO SEHARE
786,398,000 T I RN E M EEFE TR
BT - EREEDENTRELNR13.5%
R e B 765 FEORI 4 L0 48 oy B I B ik Y
ARAFREREBTAFE - BBAF
HrReEEEURSMETHIRA 3% 1
REEH - FARBEEFENEME
ERRDVETAPHABREHERAHRE
MEBFEORSRA/ M EETER - M
BEHDREBERRREEEH TS
BRNTRRETE -

EETRENRE - ARAESTEL
EEUEXGEMSAEETRERA
FIEITH(EME -

BE-_Z—XR"F+A=+—HL#F

& - REFBARY 316,841,000 TR A

R#15,261,0007CE 2 RIRYE - BE
AR A R L E FARE N ERR, o

RREREXFRAT o —T—RFFEEH/RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_-_A=+—HILFE
17. LAND USE RIGHTS 17. Tib{FERRE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2015 R-ZT—RHF—H—H 70,635
Disposals L& (6,605)
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 R-ZT—RF+-_A=1+—08 —T—RF
and 31 December 2016 —A—RAR=ZZE—R"F+=-A=1+—H 64,030
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T 5 R RE
At 1 January 2015 R=ZE—RF—HF—H 11,594
Amortisation for the year F I 5 1,335
Eliminated on disposals R E RS (1,531)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZE—RAF+=ZA=+—HEK 11,398
—T—RF—H—H
Amortisation for the year F 1,234
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss MBS &R NERHREEE 15,261
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=A=+—H 27,893
Carrying amount SRTEE
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—AR"F+=ZA=+—H 36,137
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 52,632

i) As at 31 December 2016, land use rights with a net book value
of approximately RMB28,308,000 (2015: RMB41,239,000)
was pledged to a bank as collateral against the bank loans of
RMB85,600,000 (2015: RMB35,000,000) (note 27).

i) RZE—X"F+=-_A=+—8"
BREF(E A4 AR 28,308,000
T(- T — R F: AR
41,239,0007T ) By 1=t FR#E 2 1K
WTRT  (EARITERARE
85,600,0007T(ZZE—HF : AR
35,000,000 7T ) H I8 & (B e

110

27) °
18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HitEREE
Product
development
Patents ; costs Software Total
g7 ERRZRA it &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Cost
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZZ-RF-f-H"
1 January 2016 E—-fF+-A=1+-8"
- 5-A-H 16,230 7977 - 24,207
Written off Hsa - (127) S (127)
Acquisitions through business BRERAHE (M3 35)
combination (note 35) - - 3,984 3,984
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—"EtZA=+-H 16,230 7,850 3,984 28,064
Accumulated amortisation STEERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015,
1 January 2016
16,230 7977 - 24,207
Charge for the year = = 66 66
Written off - (127) - (127)
At 31 December 2016 WZB-xF+-A=+-H 16,230 7,850 66 24,146
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 R=E-~E+-A=1-H - - 3918 3918

At 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five years,
except for certain of the intangible assets which are not yet available
for use.

GOODWILL
Cost 2%
At 1 January ®n—HA—H

Acquisitions through business FRFEEE O UE (M52 35)

combination (note 35)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Accumulated impairment losses ZRiHREFE

At 1 January n—A—H
Impairment loss REEE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value in
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions, long-term growth rate and discount rate used
in the value in use calculations are as follows:

Gross margin EH=E
Long term growth rate REERE
Pre-tax discount rate FREE AT AL IR &

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development. The long term
growth rate used was adopted based on the PRC long term projected
inflation as sourced from the International Monetary Fund. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
business.

R 5 HR 2R B

HE_Z—RF+_A=+—RHLFE
18. HMEBEREE (8)
KRERZHBEBERA T A RAEERE
b EmEIRESR [1THRER] F -
FiiEREEABRTERIMERFES - M
HRFREGHAIEAFTFHRATR
B M TR BANE TEREER
9'\ o
19. r?.:é_l_,%.
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREFIT
107,055 =
107,055 =
107,055 =

R EE B 2 PR E SRR TIREE A
BEMEET 2 HENERERE
EHtAEREDF Mz B BEER{ER
ZBRAIRE RETRE - AFHER
B mEAER T XAl g R =i
H o ZERRWEBONSELEMN

REREBEEFETEANEIERE &

iR R R RARR T ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHEF
% %
69% N/A i A
3% N/A i A
12.5% N/A i

RANEBEREEMENEERZELELE
BETEHEF A — FEEMNFHEFE -
ERRHIAEEN IR IS E R MG
o0 e P AR R HAE = R TR B AR B
BESE AN T B REARE
o PRABIR R BETIAT - I RAREZE
A B IR

RREBEZERDE o« —T—RFEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_-_A=+—HILFE
19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. BHE @)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill REELENVHBENRSERE -
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to a CGU as follows: BEZEREDRPRENTREELSE
fir :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AREFT
Sales of software and provision SHE Bt R IR LR ] AR 7S
of consultancy services 107,055 -
20. SUBSIDIARIES 20. MIBAE
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December LWTFARZZE—R"F+=A=+—HH
2016: FEWBARKRE
Proportion of
Particulars of ownership interest
issued and FEREDL
paid up capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of registered capital effective the a
incorporation BRTR interest ~ Company  subsidiary
Name of subsidiary and business HBERA/ A5H AQNE  MEAF  Principal activity
WELREE FMAKLREE EMERGFE ERfER o] e IEZEER
Wuyi International Pharmaceutical British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
Investment Company Limited (‘BVI")/Hong Kong of US$1 each
("Wuyi BVI")
RREREEREARAA KBRLHE 10,000 R EREE RERR
(TWuyi BVI)) (2BRL#B)/BE 1XTHERR
Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% = 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
HREREE(FE)ERAR B 1RERR RERR
Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% = 100%  Develop, manufacture,
Company Limited (‘Fujian Sanal’) enterprise for AMER marketing and sales of
(note (i) aterm of 50 years RMB290,780,000 pharmaceutical products
commencing
18 January 2000
BR-EBEEERAR HE NEBELE ARH GRS
(MEE=% ) (M) “EEZE-ATA 290,780,0007C RHEEm
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 5 HR 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — R F+_-_A=+—HILFE
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. HMIEB2ATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ownership interest
issued and L Rl
paid up capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of registered capital effective the a
incorporation BETR interest ~ Company  subsidiary
Name of subsidiary and business HERK/ X5E ARE  MWEAE  Principal activity
WELREE ML RS HMEAREE Bhks o] BE  IEZEER
Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% = 100% Develop, manufacture,
Company Limited (‘Fuzhou Sanai’) enterprise for HREAE marketing and sales of
(note (if) a term of 50 years US$19,810,000 pharmaceutical products
commencing
1 January 2004
BM=REXERAA hE - ERERR 19,810,000%7 RE R 28
(FRM=2 1) Rtz (i) “E2IME-A-H R#EEm
RitRBETE
Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical PRC limited liability company Registered capital 100% = 100% Marketing and sales of
Trading Co., Limited for a term of 50 years HREX pharmaceutical products
(“Sanai Pharmaceutical Trading’) commencing RMB30,000,000
(note (if) 25 February 2008
BRE-FREESARAT HE - EREANR ARE30,000,0007T EHREEER
(T=EBE ) (zxi) —EE\E-A-1+3A
EitRE0EF
Fujian Liumai Medical Services PRC limited liability company Registered capital 100% = 100%  Sales of software and
Co., Limited (‘Fujian Liumai’) for a term of 30 years &R provision of consultancy
(note (i) commencing RMB10,000,000 services
21 August 2014
BEAEERBEARAR HE - BRERAA AR10,000,0007C RERN RRHERRE
(TR 1) (e () Z3-MENAZT-A
e A0 F
Notes: Fi5E
(i) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the (0] PR HIR S F A B - SRR B
reporting period, or at any time during the year. AEBERAIREENEFES -
(ii) The English names of subsidiaries are presented for identification purposes (i) W A Bl 2 R RBE ) -

only.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A S HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s associate,
which is an unlisted company whose quoted market price is not

21.

RERE N B S

TREFHGRIE LT AR BLETE
ZREBEBERNRZER

available:
Proportion of
ownership interest
EERERZLH
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation issued and effective the a
Name of associate and business paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
EETR K&E —MEHE
PGS M RS R BREREE 2BRER AARRBE QFAEHE  FEED
Antu County Guanghui Chinese
Medicine Technology Development PRC RMB10,000,000 49% = 49%  Not yet commence
Company Limited* Registered business
FREGEETENERRERARAA " HE B AR 10,000,000 HARREH
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability company * REBERBEVEZIMABREERR
# The English name is presented for identification purpose only z B EIBEHER
The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the LA_F BN RE R A RN AR A T TS 3R
consolidated financial statements. KAARK ©
Aggregate information of the associate that is not individually ERIBTERMNEE N R 2 Bt ER
material:
RMB’000
ARETTT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually FEMBHREAFENBTIERZ
immaterial associate in the consolidated BN A 2 BREAAE
financial statements 4,795
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share SEELEEATRE
of the associate’s
Loss for the year FREE (213)
Other comprehensive income HEtb2mEikes -
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEEEE (213)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
INVENTORIES 22. 78
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Raw materials R 3,794 4,680
Work in progress EE M 412 989
Finished goods BURY SR 9,927 25,111
Merchandise GEE - 5
14,133 30,785
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense EERARI W ABREZTFESHE
and included in profit or loss is as follows: DITEATR
2016 2015
—E—XEF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Carrying amount of inventories EERFE 2 REE (FF10()
sold (note 10(c)) 244,906 436,045
Written off on inventories FEME (M 10(c))
(note 10 (c)) 13,036 -
257,942 436,045

During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to typhoon Meranti
and rupture of the main underground steam pipelines connecting all
the production compartments, the Group has written off inventories
amounted to approximately RMB13,036,000.

HE-_Z—RNE+-A=+—8B1t=F
E BARRREESERATSEESH
TEEFY  AEECHMBETEEOAR
#13,036,000 7T °
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A S HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EBZEWRIERHAEWHRIE
2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT

Trade receivables (note (ii)) B 5 e WoRaE (B EE (i) 3,414 131,417

Other receivables (note (i) H b Wk 2 (PR (i) 18,713 10,575

Amount due from an associate JE LHsE 8 A R FRIE

(note (iv)) (B (iv)) 89,915 =
Loans and receivables B & EGRIE 112,042 141,992
Prepayments and deposits FERNRIBRIZES 238 392

112,280 142,384

Notes: B &

i) Prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered after more than one i) TEHR R B — F AR M D 2 T8 FRIE R iR
year is RMB20,000 (2015: RMB115,000). All of the other trade and other £ ABARKE20,000(Z2—RF : AR
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within ¥115,0007T) - TEHAFTA H A E 5 R
one year. FIB R E A ERRIES g R —F ARk E

HIERABMAL
ii) The Group normally grants credit terms of 60 days (2015: 60 days) to its ii) AEE—RAERTFERHE60R(ZE—F
customers. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 6(c). F:60H)MEEH - AEAAEEEFEER
REE— RS - SRKITE6(C) ©
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables RFEHR  REZAH2INESHE
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on the invoice dates: WERIBRBRE AT
2016 2015
—E-REF —Z—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,648 65,372
31 to 60 days 31HE60H 1,766 66,045
3,414 131,417
jif) The balance mainly represented receivables of approximately i) HEHREZEARFARKENRBARNR
RMB16,138,000 in relation to PRC individual income tax paid on behalf of the REAZINOREBEARSHE@ENE
vendors related to the acquisition of a subsidiary during the year. W FRIEH AR 16,138,000 7T ©

iv) The balance is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment terms. i) PEHRAEER 2 EEETEEEN

fR -

V) Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and other receivables v) BEEETRERE S REMERRIEN
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and considers the trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of debtors for whom there was no recent history
of default. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

FEER  WTRAWEEHITEREN
B 5 REM R IR R EERES
NEREHAERH - AEREXARRZF
A EER S
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE

25.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 24. BAFEGTABRZEREE
LOSS
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Listed equity securities BB LTERES
in Hong Kong 41,977 -
The fair values of the above listed securities are determined based on LA BRI 3B 5 2 A FE TR R R FriE
the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange. Rz Ti5REERE -
As at 31 December 2016, the financial assets at fair value RZZE—R"E+-A=+—8 " &A¥
through profit and loss represent the trading equity securities of B \BRZeREEATEEH AR
RMB41,977,000 (2015: Nil). SIRAE H AR 41,977,000 (=B
—hF &)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEGFABRZZeMEEATEE
of RMB9,308,000 (2015: Nil) are recognised in “Other income” in the Bt AMrA e RPE) [ e ] (B
consolidated income statement (Note 9). T 9)h e 5 A AR 9,308,000 T(=F
—RF &\
These shares are held for trading. The fair value of these shares is ZERMABIEEE - LERGHZAT
based on the current bid prices in an active market. BEREENEBMSRMBEEAE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. BRERREEEY
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Bank balances and cash (note ()  $R174588 MRS (M () 55,542 555,247
Cash held under trust arrangement RIE(EFEZHHFE IR G
(note (i) and (ii)) GEIOPADO)) 53,000 =
Cash held by financial institution & Bi#EERF B &I & (KT & (i)
(note (i) 39,005 -
147,547 555,247
Notes: P3E
i) Bank balances and cash and cash held under trust arrangement of the Group i) AEBMBITEBRRSARIBREETR

HRHEZREBERTRTFERES - R
THREFBRBERZHFSENRSRE
B RAT 17 SR 2R 5+ 5 69 7 B 1) 3R BRERF
8

o

comprise cash at bank and on hand. Cash at banks and cash held under trust
arangement earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

ii) The balance represented cash held under trust arrangement by Mr. Lin Qing ii) HEREMNELAE(RARAEES) R
Ping, a former director of the Company and a related company, &M ZEF —EABARRNEFERETIEGRA
B TEAR A7 (Fuzhou Hongyu Packing Co., Ltd.) (“Fuzhou Hongyu”), a A (MEMEF]) (AR RESRITHL
company controlled by Mr. Lin Ou Wen, who is a director and chief executive MBS E IR R E)) BIR(E T2 BE
officer of the Company, to identify potential investment opportunities for the BENRE  UHBAEBMONEBERE
Group. He o

FEEZEREBRANRESETRR
EAS RHE B AT BRRIE o

iii) Cash held by financial institution by the Group represents amounts deposited iif)
in financial institution in Hong Kong and does not carry any interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE —ZT—"FE+-A=+—HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B S ENFE
- a related company (note) ——REEAR (HE)
— others —H

Payroll and welfare payables R EHE RER

Payable for acquisition of property, WEWZ - FE &
plant and equipment SRARIE T IE

Accrued charges FEETE A

Other payables H b 308

Financial liabilities measured at RS AT E 2
amortised cost TREE

Other PRC tax payables E fth & b B A TR

Contingent consideration payable — JEfTEAK(E

Note:

The related company is Fuzhou Hongyu. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date is as follows:

0 to 30 days 0&30H
31 to 60 days 31HE60H

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.
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26.

B 2 ENTIER E M E[FUE
2016 2015
—E—XxE —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
- 1,051
22 54,080
22 55,131
893 8,481
- 1,500
2,693 6,506
991 1,504
4,599 73,122
304 21,678
44,643 -
49,546 94,800

B -

ZRERRABMET - BHARER 28R
TRIRESRIEIR -

MNBEMR - NERAHSERFZ
5B SRENRIANRE ST T

2016 2015

S —2-5%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREF
22 41,102

= 14,029

22 55,131

PTG B 5 FE A< 308 K E At 5 R TR
R —F RN TIRERIEE -
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28.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B IE AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE

SECURED BANK LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of secured bank loans is as
follows:

Secured bank loans BHEBRITER

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, interest-bearing bank loans are
due for repayment within 1 year and carried at amortised cost.
The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment date as
stipulated in the respective loan agreement.

At 31 December 2016, land use rights with a net book value of
approximately RMB28,308,000 (2015: RMB41,239,000) and
property, plant and equipment with a net book value of approximately
RMB138,834,000 (2015: RMB53,130,000) were pledged to a bank
as collateral against the bank loans. The bank loans carry interest at
fixed rates ranged from 4.57% to 4.79% (2015: fixed rate of 5.00%
and 6.44%) per annum and are repayable within 1 year. The security
will be released upon settlement of the loans.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) (Tax recoverable)/current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

Provision for the PRC EIT REERBEMEMRGSREE

for the year (note 13) (FIzE13)
PRC EIT paid for the year FREMNPBECEMEH
Balance of provision for BE-—FERRzPRPE
the PRC EIT relating FriS i B 2 #ER
to prior year
Represented by: ¥5
Current taxation B HATIE
Tax recoverable AT el £ I8

27.

BEPRITER
BEMRITEFNREEINAT

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
85,600 35,000

28.

RZE—AR"EFR-_ZF—HAF+=A
=+—8 " sEERTEFER—FRE
B AN o B FURRER
Extpa] AR EIEE R HEE -

RN-T—XNE+—_A=+—H8 E@A
BEFBEH A AR ¥28308,0007T(=
T—hF: AR¥41,239,0007T) &
T FEAEREEEFENARARE
138,834,000 (ZFE—HF : AR
53,130,0007C ) MM % - W &E k& &
EEETFIRITIERBITEROEF -
BITERREEEMNENT457% 2
479% (= —HRF : BETEFE5.00% &
6.44%) 5T B MAR —FREE - IWNMEE
EE% - WIRGERER -

REE MR RA Z S8

a) RESHBHRIRAZ (FTREHR

1H),EHIFIERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
= 19,546
(4,393) (14,501)
5,045 =
652 5,045
988 5,045
(336) =
652 5,045

HREBEZERDE o« —F—RFEER
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A TS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. MEEBBARTRAZFTEH (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) CERIELEHEEERERE:

i) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities i) AKEBERGEATBERR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RABRZELERE(E
position and the movements during the year are as E)/BEREFSHMT :
follows:

Impairment
Related loss on
depreciation Fair value property  Impairment ~ Withholding
inexcess of  adjustments plant and loss on tax on
Deferred tax EEEUTH depreciation onintangible  equipment land use distributable
arising from; IR : allowances assets W% BE rights profits
BETERE Ay aE RGN tHERE  TARAE Total
WEBNE ATENER HEER HEFE S it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
A1 January 2015 R=2-15-F-R (22,645 - ogt) (608) 16,330 (47,93)
Credited to profit or loss RERWETA (216) = = = (458) (674)
Reversal upon payment of BHR AR
withholding tax - - - - (1,250) (1,250)
At31 December 2015 and 1 RIB-IFT-A=T-HR
Janury 2016 *E—A-A (22,861) - 40811) (608) 14622 (49,856)
Credited to profit or loss RERMETA (22,233) = (7921 (3,815) (1882 (107,140)
Acquired under business REZBAGLE
combination (note 35) (Ri3x35) - 99 - - - 996
At 31 December 2016 WE-AE+-A=1-B (45,09) 9 (120021) (#.621) 12740 (156,000

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or place
of business in the PRC will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate of 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. Pursuant to the double tax arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong effective on 1 January
2007, the withholding income tax rate will be reduced
to 5% if the investment by the Hong Kong investor in
the investee entities in the PRC is not less than 25%.
On 22 February 2008, the State Administration of
Taxation approved Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to
which dividend distributions out of retained earnings of
foreign investment enterprises prior to 31 December
2007 will be exempted from withholding income tax.
As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB12,740,000 (2015: RMB14,622,000) in respect
of the withholding income tax on dividends has been
recognised by the Group.

REEB-_ZEZENF—A—
HiBEMH R EEMS
% - W IEFE A B BK 37 3%
I 7E R B AR A A b B
ZHEERDE  REFH
FR Sk AE AP B ER A4S A i
2 EHBRAER B
Ik B2 7E A B AR 37 Bk AR B AT
BB BBRZIERERD
¥ BARZEEISHEA
(AR R BB 2 B 28.)
B10% R B TENAE
e BREPRERE L
YR=_ZFZT+F—A—H
ERNEEBHE T M
BERREEHPREERE
ERENEETDR25%
AIFEMAEHREETH
£5% - RZZETN\F-A
—+=H BXRBEBEERE
HEE BT (2008) 158 - 15
It HINEGE T+
F+—_A=+—HZAH
REBBF P EBELHRES
& G B G B8 A TR AN AT 1S
e R-“TE—XNE+_-A
=t+—R8  AEBEE®K
EENMAMEHERELER
T8 & &5 ARE 12,740,000
T(—E—RHF: ARK
14,622,0007T) °
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B B R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — F+_A=+—HILFE

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued)
i) (Continued)

Withholding tax on dividends represents tax charged by
the PRC tax authority on dividends distributed by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC during the year.

if) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

Deferred tax assets EREFIEEE
Deferred tax liabilities  IEERIIEE &

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(g),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB69,531,000
(2015: RMB Nil) as at 31 December 2016 as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation
except for tax losses of RMB64,378,000 (2015: RMB Nil)
in PRC which is available for carry forward to set-off future
assessable income commencing from the year 2016 for a
period of five years.

28. REFEEMBRRERAZFED (E)

by CEIELHEEERERE: (B
i) (&)
R B TEMEAEF AR BT
BHERAEENPREY
BB A &) 9 K B AR S M ER
BFLIE -
i) BEEHBMERE R
2016 2015
—Z—RE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
(169,736) (64,478)
13,736 14,622
(156,000) (49,856)
c) IREKIFE200)FTEEEHEE - A

B 1% FERR B RS K Al s R 1E
EEE R EE R AR R EENA
MIRIEEE  RAEBER=-Z
—ANE+ZA=+—HRIHHK
TEEE L AR E69,531,00070(=
T—RF  AREZ D) BRIEL
RIBEE - RBEBITHIE - ZH
HEBTEER  ERPREOT
T8 518 AR #564,378,000L (=
—hF  ARBZ) 0] AREE
HOH AR A F M 2 RN -

HREBEZERDE o« —F—RFEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — "F+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

Company
NG

At 1 January 2015

Issue of consideration shares
(note 29(b)(i)

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Equity-settled share-based transactions
(note 30)
Shares issued under placement
(note 29(b)i))
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 December 2016

Share capital

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At the beginning of the year
Issue of consideration shares
(note 29(b)(i))
Shares issued under
placement (note 29(b)(ii))

At end of the year

Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

29. WAKfHE

a) BRSNS e

ARE A EETEHHNF
NRFRBERGA REL DR

NI

2NNl ag=i e

BV E R FREEFIETIH N

TS ¢
Share
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BRA hiraE  BRERE REBEF b
(note 29(b))  (note 29(c)(i))
(BizE29(00)  (FEE29(c)(i)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%Tn
R-Z-h%-A-A 17,098 929,533 - 10,833 957,464
FIRERD
(HizE29(0)()) 1,429 51,446 = = 52,875
BN RERNZE RN
- - = 31,310 31,310
R-E-RE+-A=+-HEK
- ¥-A-H 18,527 980,979 - 42,143 1,041,649
IEREE AR BER
2325 (Hz30) - - 19,916 - 19,916
RERERTZRM
(PiizE 29(0)(i) 3,235 66,059 = = 69,294
EHRERNZEEN R
- - - 40,535 40,535
RZZ-A~E+-A=1-H 21,762 1,047,038 19,916 82,678 1,171,394
b) BA
2016 2015
—E-AE —E-RE
No. of No. of
shares shares
(000) HK$000 (000) HK$000
BHEE BRHEE
(k) FHT (Fi) FHT
HE
SREECOET
@R 3,200,000 32,000 3,200,000 32,000
ERTREAR
BREE.O1T BT A
REA 1,880,773 18,808 1,709,773 17,098
BIIRERR
(P& 29(b)(i) - = 171,000 1,710
RERE BTG
(PE29(b) i) 376,000 3,760 - =
RER 2,256,773 22,568 1,880,773 18,808
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b)

Share capital (Continued)

Shown in the consolidated R+ =—A=+—B2&4
and Company statements RNA R BT
of financial position
at 31 December

i) Issue of consideration shares
On 18 December 2015, an aggregate 171,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company were issued as deposit
paid for acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35), of which
RMB1,429,000 was credited to the share capital and the
balance of RMB51,446,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

ii) Shares issued under placement
On 9 September 2016, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with the placing agent whereby the
Company conditionally agreed to place, through the
placing agent, on a best effort basis, 376,000,000 new
shares to not less than six independent placees at the
placing price of HK$0.22 per placing share.

The placing was completed on 23 September 2016. A
total of 376,000,000 placing shares have been placed
to not less than six independent placees at the placing
price of HK$0.22 per placing share. The net proceeds
from the placing after deducting relevant expenses of
approximately HK$2,188,000 incurred in relation to the
placing, amounted to approximately HK$80,532,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB69,294,000), of which
RMB3,235,000 and RMB66,059,000 were credited
to the share capital and the share premium account
respectively.

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary share rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

i) Share premium

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which a dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

29. RAKfGHE (8)
b) RA(E)

2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREFIT
21,762 18,527

] BITIER L

R=F—RF+=A+N
B ARQA%FETAEH
171,000,000 & & i@A% - /£
BE B AR BN
B4 (MizE35) » HR - A
R#1,429,000 5+ ARR A K2
# N AR #51,446,0005t
AR EEER -

i)  RIEEERTZRA
R-Z—RENLANA"
ARRAREREERELT Y
EEm#E Bt AR
AEE KRR EEBE
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29.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

i)

i)

iv)

Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

Special reserve
Special reserve represents the aggregate of:

a) the difference between the consideration paid
by a subsidiary of the Company, Wuyi BVI, for
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Fujian Sanai and the nominal value of the paid-
in capital of Fujian Sanai pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2007.

b) the difference between the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company and the amount of
share capital of Wuyi BVI acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares in 2007; and

©) the difference between the consideration paid
for the acquisition of additional interests in
Fuzhou Sanai and the carrying values of the
underlying net assets attributable to the additional
interests in Fuzhou Sanai pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2007.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the capital contributions
from Mr. Lin Qing Ping, a former director and former
shareholder of the Company; and Fuzhou Hongyu, a
company controlled by Mr. Lin Ou Wen, a director and
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations
for foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of their profit after tax to the reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital and
thereafter any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of a capitalisation issue.

Non-distributable reserve

In accordance with the Articles of Association of Fujian
Sanai, Fujian Sanai may appropriate funds to the non-
distributable reserve at the discretion of its board of
directors. According to the Articles of Association of
Fujian Sanai, the non-distributable reserve can be used
to (i) make up prior year losses; (ii) convert into capital,
provided such conversion is approved by a resolution
at a shareholders’ meeting; and (i) expand production
operation.
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

vi) Share option reserve
This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised
share options granted to eligible participants of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(p)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

Under the Cayman Companies Law, share premium is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium if (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital account.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB1,129,716,000 (2015: RMB1,023,122,000) computed
in accordance with the Cayman Companies Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association. This includes the
Company’s share premium of RMB1,047,038,000 (2015:
RMB980,979,000), plus retained profits of RMB82,678,000
(2015: RMB42,143,000), which is available for distribution
provided that immediately following the date on which a
dividend is proposed, the Company will be able to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes trade and other payables, secured bank loans and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. During 2016, the Group’s strategy
was unchanged from 2015. The directors review the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the review,
the directors will balance the Group’s capital structure through
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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29.

30.
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

e) Capital management (Continued)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December
2016 and 2015 was as follows:

Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 M~ 5RIE KR A FE T FRIE
Secured bank loans BEFRITER

Total debt RIEIE

Total equity AR

Debt-to-equity ratio B =X

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 8 January 2007 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to and recognising significant
contributions from directors and eligible employees, and expiring on
31 January 2017. Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options
to all full-time employees, directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) and part-time employees with weekly working
hours of 10 hours and above, of the Group, substantial shareholders
of each member of the Group, associates of the Directors and
substantial shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of
any trust pre-approved by the Board, and any advisor (professional
or otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer,
joint venture partner, service provider of the Group whom the Board
considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or contributes to the
Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the date of listing of the shares on
the Stock Exchange which represents 164,300,000 shares (excluding
the over-allotment portion) or 7% of issued share capital of the
Company, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under this
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under this Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company if such limit is
exceeded. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue or with an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 30. UESAEURGAER RS
(Continued) (%8)
The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted RERBHERLBERETNIZEZAEH
within 28 days from the date of offer upon payment of a consideration HZ28HNEWN AR ABEEZENE
of HK$1.00 by the grantee. Options may be exercised at any time TARAREB1.008 T - BRETRR L
and settled by shares immediately from the date of grant of the share B S B SKhEEMEA M
options or during the period as notified by the directors at the date BERFITEN AR GEHE - ITEEBHRAR
of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the RBESEET  HTISERUT=F2%
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price mE ()RR L B BARFRD 2 H
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing B () EEREBHITRAER S8 2Kk
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding IFEHUTE K (i) AR RO EE
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
At 31 December 2016, a total of 164,000,000 shares (representing R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8 ' &A2Q"]
approximately 7% of the existing issued share capital at 31 December Al RE R TE AR BT B H AT
2016 of the Company) may be issued upon exercise of all share HEE AR A 5 25 17 6 3£164,000,000 A% A% 19
options which were granted under the share option scheme. (EARRABRZE—RE+=-_A=1+—
HEZITRALI7%)
No vesting period or vesting condition on the share options and the BREBEHERERLABRERFHBA
options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant and 2R SEBRE BB
within a period of five years from the date of grant. JB I DA K B AR R A T -
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for ordinary share BHEREATEEAREARARRLRA
in the Company and is settled gross in shares. 1% - WA 2 BAEE 2 R
a)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share a) BB RESR B KN 1T EE
options are as follows: Ik
2016 2015
ZE-RE —“T-H%F
Number of Number of
shares shares
Weighed issuable Weighted issuable
average under options average  under options
exercise granted exercise granted
price IR R price RIERERE
IR Al T T IR A TEAT
B 2 Ringi B 7188 ZIRIDEE
Outstanding at the beginning BOMEATE
of the period = = = -
Granted during the period ALY HK$0.32 164,000,000 = =
Outstanding at the end of the period 37 ¥ K 1T/ HK$0.32 164,000,000 = =
Exercisable at the end of the period  HiARA] F17{§ HK$0.32 164,000,000 = =

WEBRERBE_Z—RF+_H
=+ —RIEFEETE -

No share option was exercised during the year ended 31
December 2016.

R-ZE—RE+=-A=+—BHKR1TE
2 BB 2 1T1E (8 0.32 8 T R hnAEF
FIREHFHR496F ©

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had an
exercise price of HK$0.32 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.96 years.
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30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

b) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on the Binomial Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date REtE B2 AFE
Share price IR E
Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average
volatility used in the modelling
under Binomial Model)

Option life (expressed as weighted

SR IESIR)

average life used in T FEAFIR)
the modelling under the Binominal Model)
Expected dividends TEHARR B &

Risk-free interest rate (based on 2 [ B A1 2

Exchange Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these share
options were granted to the consultants for rendering
miscellaneous services to the Group, including but not limited
to consultancy services in respect of identification of potential
investment opportunities and lining-up business connections
for the Group. The Group granted share options to them for
recognising their efforts. Since their services are such unique
that the fair value cannot be reliably measured, the services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
RMB19,916,000 during the year in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for BEL

Acquisition of intangible assets WEELEE

Share of capital commitment in AR R) B AR
the associate 21D

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

—FR
—FRELFA

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group leases office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of two years to three years with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land under operating
leases are described in note 17.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed scheme. The employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following significant related party transactions, and had
balances due to related parties in trade and other payables as

at the end of the reporting period.

34. EXBEEALRS

a) BRZEUBRREMMTTRE
ZRPRAERIN  REBFTZLT
JBRBEALRS - ARG
B & 5 & 008 R EL A R 5 5R0R
BN RBIEA AT

Balance Balance
Transactions for asat 31 as at 31
the year ended December 2016 December 2015
31 December Trade Trade
BET-A=t-H payables payables
Name of Relationship Nature of LEEZRS RZE-AE+ZA RZF-1%F1+2A
related party with related party transaction 2016 2015 =t-R&Es =+-REH
BEALEZHE HEEALHER RFME —E-5E —E-1f EARMTE BARMFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBT R ARETT
Fuzhou Hongyu A company Purchase of packaging 1,007 4,480 - 1,061
controlled by materials
Mr. Lin Ou Wen*
BMNETF BB R BEARMH
EHSAR*
# Mr. Lin Ou Wen is the chief executive officer and a director of the g MBS S £ B R AT TR B,
Company. REE -

b) At the end of the reporting period, included in other receivables
was amount due from a related party of RMB2,540,000. The
related party is the key management personnel of a subsidiary

of the Group.

c) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
representing amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

disclosed in note 11 is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term #& N HAth 52 HifE 218 7

employee benefits
Post-employment benefits B 5%k 14 12 A

Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e Annual Report 2016

b) HRIEHKR REMERZRSZ
FEURRRE A T A AR 2,540,000
TTe WWEBALAREETF AT
ZEEEEAE

c) IEEBEASHMH
REBEREEEIRA BB (B140
BIEE 11 TR BRI T AR R E

BZSE)WT
2016 2015
—E—XEF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREFIT
2,793 3,244
133 147
2,926 3,391
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 9 December 2015, Fujian Sanai, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (“Share
Transfer Agreement”) with two independent third parties, namely
Mr. Lin Wei Yan and Mr. Chen Zi Xian (the “Vendors”), in which each
of them owned 50% of equity interest in Fujian Liumai. Pursuant to
the Share Transfer Agreement, the Vendors conditionally agreed
to sell 100% equity interests in Fujian Liumai at a consideration of
HK$145,000,000 (approximately equivalents to RMB124,304,000)
(the “Acquisition”), in which HK$65,000,000 (approximately
equivalents to RMB52,875,000) shall be settled by allotting and
issuing 171,000,000 consideration shares at the issue price of
HK$0.38 each and the balance of HK$80,000,000 (approximately
equivalents to RMB71,429,000) shall be settled in cash.

The principal activities of Fujian Liumai are the sales of software and
provision of consultancy services. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that through the acquisition, the Group will be able to
promote the products of the Group and enhance the awareness of
the products of the Group, to effectively facilitate the expansion of
the Group’s market share in the pharmaceutical industry throughout
the PRC, and to generate synergy in areas including distribution
channels for pharmaceutical products and the daily operation and
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement, the Vendors jointly
and severally undertake and guarantee that based on the financial
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, the total audited net profit after taxation of Fujian
Liumai arising from its ordinary course of business for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 shall not be less than RMB8,000,000
(the “2016 Profit Guarantee”). Under the Share Transfer Agreement,
no adjustment shall be made to the consideration if Fujian Liumai
meets the 2016 Profit Guarantee. If the audited net profit of Fujian
Liumai is less than RMB8,000,000 but higher than RMB4,000,000,
the consideration of Fujian Liumai will be adjusted based on a price-
to-earnings ratio of 15 times on Fujian Liumai’s actual profit in year
2016, and the Vendors shall refund and pay to Fujian Sanai (or deduct
from the consideration balance) in cash the shortfall.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that the
Group could be required to make under this arrangement is between
RMBO and RMB44,643,000.

The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement is
RMB44,643,000 was estimated by applying the income approach
and based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional qualified valuer. The fair value estimates are based on
assumed profit of Fujian Liumai of RMB8,000,000. This is a level 3
fair value measurement. The key unobservable inputs of the valuation
were: (i) expected volatility of 53.7%; (i) risk free rate of 3.21% and
(iii) the estimated profits of Fujian Liumai. No change in fair value was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of 171,000,000
shares were issued by the Company as part payment of the
consideration. The fair value of consideration shares issued was
RMB52,875,000, which was determined using the published market
price of the date of issue.

The acquisition was completed on 16 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —T— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE
35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) EREG(E)
a)  Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of a) RKEBHEREEERERER
acquisition: 8f&:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
WEEmER 2 AT E
RMB’000
AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16)  #¥1% « /= K& (HizE16) 23
Intangible assets (note 18) R A E (MsE18) 3,984
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEMGRIE [ E Ath FE YR TE 4,780
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 10,012
Other payables H fth FE S 3RI8 (554)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 28(b)) RIETIE A & (FI7E 28(b)) (996)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATFEHANEEFERE 17,249
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 19)  UEEL M (K 19) 107,055
124,304
b) b)
RMB’000
AREFIT
Fair value of consideration transferred EERAREZATE
— Issue of consideration shares —EITRERD 52,875
- Cash consideration paid —-BRHEERE 26,786
- Contingent consideration — RS ARAE (P 5E 26)
payable (note 26) 44,643
124,304

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Fujian Liumai is
attributable to the benefit of expected synergies in areas
including distribution channels for pharmaceutical products
and the daily operation and management of the Group, revenue
growth and future market development of Fujian Liumai. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

c)

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition:

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

o BENRERE

Less: Cash consideration paid

Net cash outflows on acquisition W BEIR &7 H R 5B
Impact of the acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the revenue and the loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is a revenue of approximately
RMB283,000 and a loss of approximately RMB119,000 from
Fujian Liumai since the date of completion of the acquisition.

Had the acquisition been effected on 1 January 2016,
the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 would have been RMB266,138,000
and RMB397,567,000 respectively. The directors of the
Company consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference point
for comparison in future periods.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB351,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in the
current year, within the ‘administrative expenses’ line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade receivables) in this transaction with a fair value
of RMB2,320,000 had a gross contractual amount of
RMB2,320,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is RMBNil.

Rt 5 R 2R Y

T—ARF+ZA=H HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE —ZE—XFE+-A=+—HIFE
36. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. ATEEBBEAARRE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETIT AREFTT
Non-current assets IEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITBARZIZE 214,861 214,786
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b FEURIE 877,371 826,913
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 41,977 =
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEY 39,536 249
958,884 827,162
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables HAb e 308 2,351 299
Net assets EEZE 1,171,394 1,041,649
Capital and reserves BERR S 29(a)
Share capital f& 7R 21,762 18,527
Reserves G 1,149,632 1,023,122
Total equity BRER 1,171,394 1,041,649
37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 37. EXFBERG

HE—_Z—RE+-_A=+—8I1tF
g Wi — R B A RN IR S Ty 3
77171,000,000 & 2 RERRHD (A FEA
AR 52 875,0007T) 2 H REEE o

During the year ended 31 December 2015, deposit paid for
acquisition of a subsidiary was settled by way of issue of 171,000,000
consideration shares of fair value of RMB52,875,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZT—/NF+= A=

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases*

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 January

2018, as appropriate

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, impacts may be identified in due course and will
be taken into consideration whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional
approach to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed
under the new standards.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FMBEE

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land
use rights
Written off on property,
plant and equipment
Written off on inventory
Finance costs
Share of results
of an associate

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Dividends paid

(Loss)/earnings per share
- Basic and diluted

Year ended 31 December

BET-RA=+—RI%E

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

136 Wauyi International Pharmaceutical Company Limited e

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T-CF —2—=F —T-mE —T-RfF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTL AREFT AREFT ARETT
Yozt 528,119 532,341 549,625 555,652 263,025
HEMRA (348,713) (389,917) (431,601) (436,045) (245,062)
EF 179,406 142,424 118,024 119,607 17,963
Hit Mz 3,169 2,094 1,846 1,978 14,196
& i ERER - - - 35,003 (7
mE - BER
SRR/ (BEB)
DA (86,879) (84,875) (63,789) (44,112) (15,478)
TRER (44,486) (47,048) (48,299) (52,660) (82,781)
0% - BRE LB
RESE (108,050) (10,419) (44,775) = (316,841)
T RERERE
- - (8,225) - (15,261)
VERS NG b
- = = = (89,931)
FEH#E (13,036)
B A - (127) (978) (2,241) 2,117)
NG e
= - - = (105)
BrEiAn (B518), i A (56,840) 2,049 (41,196) 57,575 (503,398)
fHiges 12,284 (5,604) (2,833) (16,372) 107,140
FR(ER)/ 57 (44,556) (3,555) (44,029) 41,203 (396,258)
T AL
ARAEEA (44,556) (3,555) (44,029) 41,208 (396,258)
BARE 11,229 = = = =
Bk (E18), /B RMB(2.6) cents  RMB(0.2) cents ~ RMB(2.6) cents ~ RMB2.4 cents RMB(20.0) cents
—HAREE AR¥@6)D  AR®0272  AR®E@6)% AR¥245%  AR¥(20.0)%
BEREE
As at 31 December
®W+=—HA=+—A”
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T--F —T-=fF —T-NF —T-FF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETTR
BEE 1,692,266 1,610,072 1,684,042 1,694,932 1,388,287
Bak (93,295) (114,656) (132,655 (149,467 (149,870)
BETE 1,498,971 1,495,416 1,451,387 1,545,465 1,238,417
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